
 
M
di
at

CALL T
 
 M
 
PLEDGE
 
ROLL C
 

C
M

 
REORD
 
PUBLIC

Sp
ad
H
ac
Sp
us

 
CONSEN

Th
C
Ag
C

 
1. M
 
2. L

2
 

3. R
C
F


Materials relate
istribution of th
t 107 West Hig

TO ORDER

Mayor Holly 

E OF ALLE

CALL 

Council Mem
Mayor Holly 

DERING OF

C COMMEN
peaker Slip to b
ddress the Coun

Hearing, includin
ction may be tak
peakers using a 
sed. 

NT CALEN
he following item
ouncil Member,
genda to allow f
omment period. 

Minutes of M

List of Claim
018/19 

Resolution N
California, A
Full-Time Em
   (Staff Co

CIT

Regular
City Cou

ed to an item 
he agenda pac

ghway 246, dur

R 

Sierra 

EGIANCE 

mbers Dave K
Sierra 

F AGENDA

NTS  
be completed an
cil on any subje

ng the Consent A
ken at this meet
translator are al

NDAR  
ms are considere
 the City Attorn
for full discussi

March 28, 20

ms to be Ap

No. 19-08  –
Approving a
mployees, E
ontact: Fina

TY OF
CITY COU

r Meeting of
uncil Chamb

Buellt

on this agend
ket, are availa

ring normal bu

King, Art M

A 

nd turned in to 
ct pertaining to 
Agenda and Clo
ting on matters 
llotted a total of

ed routine and no
ney, or the City 
ion. Members of

019 City Co

pproved an

– “A Resolu
a 3.5% Cos

Effective, Ju
nce Director

 

F BUEL
 

UNCIL AG
f April 11, 2
bers, 140 W
on, Californ

da, as well as
able for public 
usiness hours.

 

ercado, John

 
the City Clerk p
City business, in

osed Session.  L
raised during P

f six (6) minutes 

 
on-controversia
Manager may 

of the Public ma

ouncil Meeti

nd Ratified 

ution of the
st of Living

uly 1, 2019”
r Shannel Za

LLTON
GENDA 
2019 – 6:00 

West Highwa
nia 

s materials su
inspection in th

n Sanchez, V

 
prior to comme
ncluding all item

Limited to three 
Public Comment
to speak, unless

 
al and are schedu

request that an 
ay speak on Con

ing 

for Payme

e City Coun
g Adjustmen

amora) 

N 

p.m. 
ay 246 

ubmitted to the
the Office of th

Vice Mayor E

  
encement of mee
ms on the agenda

(3) minutes per
ts not included o
s simultaneous tr

   
uled for consider

item be withdr
nsent Agenda it

ent to Date 

ncil of the C
nt (COLA)

e City Counci
e City Clerk, lo

Ed Andrisek

 
eting. Any perso
a not listed as a 
r speaker.  By l
on this agenda. 
ranslation equip

     (ACTI
ration as a group

rawn from the C
tems during the 

for Fiscal 

City of Buel
 for all Reg

l after 
ocated 

k, and 

on may 
Public 

law, no 
Public 
ment is 

ION) 
up.  Any 
Consent 

Public 

Year 

llton, 
gular 

Page 1 of 120



City Council Meeting Agenda                          Page 2            April 11, 2019                                     
 

4. Annual Report for July 1, 2018 through December 31, 2018 from Visit Santa Ynez 
Valley (VisitSYV) 
   (Staff Contact: Finance Director Shannel Zamora) 

 
PRESENTATIONS 
 
5. Proclamation Recognizing National Donate Life Month 
 
PUBLIC HEARINGS                
    
COUNCIL MEMBER COMMENTS/ITEMS 
 
WRITTEN COMMUNICATIONS 

Written communications are included in the agenda packets.  Any Council Member, the City Manager, or 
City Attorney may request that a written communication be read into the record. 
 

COMMITTEE REPORTS  
This Agenda listing is the opportunity for Council Members to give verbal Committee Reports on any 
meetings recently held for which the Council Members are the City representatives thereto. 
 

BUSINESS ITEMS               (POSSIBLE ACTION) 
 

6. Fiscal Year 2019-20 & 2020-21 Requests for Funding from Non-Profit Agencies 
(Staff Contact: Finance Director Shannel Zamora) 
 

7. Consideration of Reinstating Employer Contribution to the 457 Deferred 
Compensation Plan (DCP) for Employees Hired after January 1, 2012 
 (Staff Contact: Human Resources Director Linda Reid) 

 
CITY MANAGER’S REPORT  
 
CLOSED SESSION ITEMS                        (POSSIBLE ACTION) 

8. Closed Session Pursuant to Government Code Section 54957(b)(1):  
PUBLIC EMPLOYEE APPOINTMENT 
Title: City Manager 

 
ADJOURNMENT 

 
The next meeting of the City Council will be held on Thursday, April 25, 2019 at 6:00 
p.m. 
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City Manager Review:  MPB 

Council Agenda Item No.:        1 
 

CITY OF BUELLTON 
 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES 
Regular Meeting of March 28, 2019 

City Council Chambers, 140 West Highway 246 
Buellton, California 

 
CALL TO ORDER 
 
 Mayor Sierra called the meeting to order at 6:00 p.m. 
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
ROLL CALL 
 

Present: Council Members Dave King, Art Mercado, and John Sanchez, 
Vice Mayor Ed Andrisek and Mayor Holly Sierra 

 
Staff: City Manager Marc Bierdzinski, City Attorney Greg Murphy, 

Public Works Director Rose Hess, Finance Director Shannel 
Zamora, Planning Director Andrea Keefer, Lt. Eddie Hsueh, 
Contract Planner Irma Tucker, and City Clerk Linda Reid 

 
PUBLIC COMMENTS 

 
Puck Erickson, representing Santa Ynez Valley Botanic Garden displayed a video that 
showed what’s happening at the Botanic Garden and provided an events calendar for the 
record. 

CONSENT CALENDAR 

Mayor Sierra announced she met with the Finance staff and discussed a procedural 
change to how accounts payable will process payments going forward. 

1. Minutes of March 14, 2019 Regular City Council Meeting 
 
2. List of Claims to be Approved and Ratified for Payment to Date for Fiscal Year 

2018/19 
 

3. Monthly Treasurer’s Report – February 28, 2019 
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4. Resolution No. 19-06 – “A Resolution of the City Council of the City of Buellton, 
California, Authorizing the Filing of a Claim with the Santa Barbara County 
Association of Governments for Allocation of Transportation Development Act 
Funds for Fiscal Year 2019-20” 

 
5. Receive and File the 2018 Annual Report on the Status of the General Plan 

 
6. Extension of City Manager Contract 
 
7. Approval of Settlement Agreement Related to California Voting Rights Act 
 

MOTION: 
Motion by Council Member King, seconded by Council Member Mercado, approving 
Consent Calendar Items 1 and 7 as listed.  
 
VOTE: 
Motion passed by a roll call vote of 5-0. 
Council Member King – Yes 
Council Member Mercado – Yes 
Council Member Sanchez - Yes 
Vice Mayor Andrisek – Yes  
Mayor Sierra – Yes  

PRESENTATIONS 
 

 None 

PUBLIC HEARINGS     

8. Resolution No. 19-05 – “A Resolution of the City Council of the City of Buellton, 
California, Adopting the Measure A Five-Year Local Program of Projects for Fiscal 
Years 2019/2020 – 2023/2024”  
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
That the City Council consider adoption of Resolution No. 19-05. 
 
STAFF REPORT: 
Public Works Director Hess presented the staff report with some numerical changes to 
Exhibit A. 
 
SPEAKERS/DISCUSSION: 
Mayor Sierra opened the public hearing at 6:15 p.m.  There being no public comment, 
Mayor Sierra closed the Public Hearing at 6:16 p.m. 
 
DOCUMENTS: 
Staff report with attachments as listed in the staff report. 
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MOTION: 
Motion by Council Member King, seconded by Council Member Mercado approving 
Resolution No. 19-05 – “A Resolution of the City Council of the City of Buellton, 
California, Adopting the Measure A Five-Year Local Program of Projects for Fiscal 
Years 2019/20 – 2023/24”  

VOTE: 
Motion passed by a roll call vote of 5-0. 
Council Member King – Yes 
Council Member Mercado – Yes 
Council Member Sanchez – Yes 
Vice Mayor Andrisek - Yes 
Mayor Sierra – Yes 

 
COUNCIL MEMBER COMMENTS/ITEMS 

 
 Council Member Sanchez stated that he is working with Randy Endelos on installing  

solar lights for the flags on the Avenue of Flags. 
 
 Vice Mayor Andrisek congratulated the Buellton Chamber of Commerce for organizing 

the Wine and Chili Festival at Flying Flags RV Resort.  The other Council Members who 
attended said the event was very well done. 

 
 Vice Mayor Andrisek requested and the Council agreed by consensus to agendize a 

discussion regarding the Plains All American pipeline project and provided a sample 
resolution adopted by the City of Santa Maria for the record.  

 
 Council Member Sanchez requested and the Council agreed by consensus to agendize 

discussion regarding the red curb along the south end of McMurray Road. 
 
WRITTEN COMMUNICATIONS 
 
 None 
 
COMMITTEE REPORTS 
 

Mayor Sierra announced that she and Council Member Sanchez attended the Library 
Advisory Committee meeting and provided an oral report regarding the meeting. 

Council Member Mercado announced that he attended the Buellton Chamber of 
Commerce Board meeting and provided an oral report regarding the meeting. 

Council Member Andrisek announced that he attended the Central Coast Water Authority 
(CCWA) Board meeting and provided an oral report regarding the meeting. 
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Mayor Sierra announced that she attended the California Association of Councils of 
Government (CALCOG) board meeting in Yosemite and provided an oral report 
regarding the meeting.  

Mayor Sierra announced that she attended board meetings for Santa Barbara County 
Association of Governments (SBCAG) and Air Pollution Control District (APCD) and 
provided oral reports regarding the meetings.   

BUSINESS ITEMS                     

9. Discussion and Direction Regarding Adding the Buellton Senior Center as a Budget 
Line Item 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
That the City Council consider adding the Buellton Senior Center as a budget line item 
and discuss how much to allocate the non-profit funding if the Buellton Senior Center is 
removed from this funding source 

 
STAFF REPORT: 
City Manager Bierdzinski presented the staff report. 
 
SPEAKERS/DISCUSSION: 
Pam Gnekow, representing the Buellton Senior Center asked for support of the budget 
line item for the Buellton Senior Center. 
 
The City Council discussed the following issues: 

 Support for the Buellton Senior Center 
 How much money to allocate for the remaining non-profit agencies 

 
DOCUMENTS: 
Staff report with attachments as listed in the staff report. 
 
MOTION: 
Motion by Council Member Sanchez, seconded by Vice Mayor Andrisek, approving the 
addition of the Buellton Senior Center as a budget line item with a budgeted amount of 
$65,000.  

 
VOTE: 

Motion passed by a roll call vote of 5-0. 
Council Member King – Yes 
Council Member Mercado – Yes 
Council Member Sanchez – Yes 
Vice Mayor Andrisek - Yes 
Mayor Sierra – Yes 

 

Page 6 of 120



City Council Meeting Minutes                                                                Page 5                                                                              March 28, 2019 

 

DIRECTION: 
The City Council agreed by consensus to cap the remaining non-profit funding at 
$25,000. 

10. Determination of Employee Cost of Living Adjustment (COLA) for Fiscal Year 
2019-20 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
That the City Council consider approval of a COLA for all full-time regular City 
employees for Fiscal Year 2019-20 in the amount of 4.0 percent. 

 
STAFF REPORT: 
Finance Director Zamora presented the staff report. 
 
SPEAKERS/DISCUSSION: 
The City Council discussed the appropriate COLA percentage. 
 
DOCUMENTS: 
Staff report with attachments as listed in the staff report. 
 
DIRECTION: 
The Council agreed by consensus to approve a 3.5% COLA for all full-time regular 
employees effective July 1, 2019 and staff will present a resolution solidifying the COLA 
at the April 11 Council meeting. 

 

11. Review and Direction to Staff Regarding Avenue of Flags Median Two Design Plan  
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
That the City Council review the draft plans and provide staff with additional direction if 
necessary to move forward towards completion of the Design Plans.  

STAFF REPORT: 
Public Works Director Hess presented the staff report. 
 
SPEAKERS/DISCUSSION: 
Peggy Brierton, Buellton provided her suggestions for the flex-space median and 
submitted a handout for the record which was distributed to the City Council and made 
part of the record. 
 
Ron Milligan, Landscape Architect with MNS Engineers discussed the proposed 
landscape concept and flex-space area.  
 
Irma Tucker, Contract Planner discussed the proposed flex-space. 
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The City Council discussed the following issues: 
 Adding rolled curbs 
 Replace the two 30 foot flag poles with a 50 foot centrally located flag pole  
 Use of drought resistant and low maintenance landscaping 
 Provide options of stamped concrete rather than using pavers 
 Allowing space for two lanes in each direction per the Specific Plan 
 Council support of the alternative design plan presented at the meeting 

 
DOCUMENTS: 
Staff report with attachments as listed in the staff report. 
 
DIRECTION: 
The City Council agreed by consensus to direct staff to move forward with the alternative 
design plan for Median Two of the Avenue of Flags and bring back a revised concept 
plan. 
 

12. Review and Approval of Botanic Garden Entry Pillars at River View Park 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
That the City Council review and approve the design and location of the Botanic Garden 
entry pillars at River View Park.   

STAFF REPORT: 
Public Works Director Hess presented the staff report. 
 
SPEAKERS/DISCUSSION: 
The City Council requested that the sign be raised up higher or be placed on pedestals. 
 
DOCUMENTS: 
Staff report with attachments as listed in the staff report. 
 
DIRECTION: 
The City Council agreed by consensus to approve the design and location of the Botanic 
Garden entry pillars at River View Park. 

 
CITY MANAGER’S REPORT 
 

City Manager Bierdzinski provided an informational report to the City Council. 

CLOSED SESSION ITEMS      
 
13. Closed Session Pursuant to Government Code Section 54957(b)(1):  

PUBLIC EMPLOYEE APPOINTMENT 
Title: City Manager 
The City Council met in closed session to discuss Item 13.  No reportable action was 
taken. 
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ADJOURNMENT 
 
Mayor Sierra adjourned the regular meeting at 8:20 p.m. The next regular meeting of the 
City Council will be held on Thursday, April 11, 2019 at 6:00 p.m.    

 
 
 

_________________________________ 
Holly Sierra 

 Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
__________________________________ 
Linda Reid 
City Clerk 
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CITY OF BUELLTON 
City Council Agenda Staff Report 

 
City Manager Review:  MPB 

Council Agenda Item No.:         2 
        

To:    The Honorable Mayor and City Council 
 
From:    Shannel Zamora, Finance Director 
 
Meeting Date:  April 11, 2019 

 
Subject: List of Claims to be Approved and Ratified for Payment to Date 

for Fiscal Year 2018/19 
______________________________________________________________________________ 
 
BACKGROUND 

 
Staff is required to submit a check register to the City Council for approval every council 
meeting for the most recently completed check register (Attachment 1).  
 
The check register for the period 03/20/2019 through 04/03/2019 has been prepared in 
accordance to Government Code 37202 and City Code 3.08.070. The check register lists 
all vendor payments for the specified period above, along with claimant’s name, a brief 
description of the goods or service purchased, amount of demand, check number, check 
date and the account number(s) associated with each payment.  
 
The total amount of checks, 03/20/2019 through 04/03/2019, and electronic fund 
transfers issued for the period of 03/20/2019 through 04/02/2019 was $324,860.35.  
 

FISCAL IMPACT 
 
Payments made to the various vendors were consistent with the approved City’s Biennial 
Budget for FY 2017/18 and FY 2018/19. Cash is available for the payment disbursements 
of the above liabilities.  

 
RECOMMENDATION 
 

That the City Council review and accept the check register for the period 03/20/2019 
through 04/03/2019. 
 

ATTACHMENTS 
 
 Attachment 1 – Claims 
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CITY OF BUELLTON 
City Council Agenda Staff Report 

 
City Manager Review:  MPB 

Council Agenda Item No.:         3 
 
 
To:  The Honorable Mayor and City Council 
 
From:  Shannel Zamora, Finance Director 
 
Meeting Date:  April 11, 2019 
 
Subject:  Resolution No. 19-08 – “A Resolution of the City Council of the 

City of Buellton, California, Approving a 3.5% Cost of Living 
Adjustment (COLA) for all Regular Full-Time Employees, 
Effective, July 1, 2019” 

______________________________________________________________________________ 
 
BACKGROUND 

 
Buellton Municipal Code Section 2.08.060 authorizes the City Manager to prepare and 
submit a proposed annual salary plan to the City Council for its approval. On March 28, 
2019, the City Council authorized a 3.5 percent Cost of Living Adjustment (COLA) for 
all regular full-time employees, effective, July 1, 2019 and requested that staff bring back 
a resolution formally approving the COLA for Fiscal Year 2019-20. 
 

FISCAL IMPACT 
 

The fiscal impact of the COLA will be reflected in the Fiscal Year 2019-20 Budget and 
the overall increase including benefits would be $49,095. 
 

RECOMMENDATION 
 

That the City Council approve and adopt Resolution No. 19-08 – “A Resolution of the 
City Council of the City of Buellton, California, Approving a 3.5% Cost of Living 
Adjustment (COLA) for all Regular Full-Time Employees, Effective, July 1, 2019” 

 
ATTACHMENTS 
 

Resolution No. 19-08 
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RESOLUTION NO. 19-08 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF BUELLTON, CALIFORNIA, APPROVING A 3.5% 
COST OF LIVING ADJUSTMENT (COLA) FOR ALL 
REGULAR FULL-TIME EMPLOYEES, EFFECTIVE JULY 
1, 2019 

 
 
 WHEREAS, Section 2.08.060 of the Buellton Municipal Code authorizes the City 
Manager to prepare and submit a proposed annual salary plan to the City Council for its 
approval; and  
 

WHEREAS, the City Council has reviewed and approved the 3.5% COLA submitted on 
March 28, 2019; and  

 
WHEREAS, the City Council values the work performed by its regular full-time 

employees; and 
 
 WHEREAS, based on financial information provided by the Finance Director, the City 
Council has determined that it is financially prudent to provide for an increase in salaries of 
regular full-time employees.  
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF BUELLTON 
DOES RESOLVE, DETERMINE, FIND, AND ORDER AS FOLLOWS: 
 

SECTION 1.  The City Council hereby finds that the above recitations are true and 
correct and, accordingly, are incorporated as a material part of this Resolution. 

 
SECTION 2.  The City Council hereby directs adjustments to regular full-time 

employees’ salaries to reflect a 3.5% cost of living adjustment, effective July 1, 2019. 
 
 SECTION 3.  The fiscal impact of the salary adjustment will be reflected in the Fiscal 
Year 2019-20 City Budget. 
 

SECTION 4.  The City Clerk shall certify to the adoption of this Resolution. 
 
 PASSED, APPROVED and ADOPTED this 11th day of April, 2019. 
 
  

_________________________________ 
         Holly Sierra 

          Mayor  
ATTEST: 
 
__________________________________ 
 Linda Reid  
City Clerk 
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CITY OF BUELLTON 
City Council Agenda Staff Report 

  
City Manager Review:  MPB 

Council Agenda Item No.:         4 
 
  
To:    The Honorable Mayor and City Council 
  
From:    Shannel Zamora, Finance Director 
  
Meeting Date: April 11, 2019 

  
Subject:  Annual Report for July 1, 2018 through December 31, 2018 from 

Visit Santa Ynez Valley (VisitSYV) 
______________________________________________________________________________ 
 
BACKGROUND 
  

Attached is the Annual Report for the period July 1, 2018 through December 31, 2018 
from Visit Santa Ynez Valley.   

  
 RECOMMENDATION 
 

That the City Council receive, review and file the VisitSYV 2018 Annual Report. 
 
ATTACHMENTS 

 
Attachment 1 – 2018 Annual Report from Visit Santa Ynez Valley 
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Annual report for 2018 of the Santa Ynez Valley Hotel Association (dba Visit the Santa Ynez 
Valley) – Submitted 3/13/19 
VisitSYV is reporting activity for the entire year of 2018. This report is submitted to the City of 
Solvang, the City of Buellton and the Santa Barbara County Board of Supervisors, in accordance 
with the fulfillment of the provisions of the SYV TBID. 

Financial 

Beginning balance on January 1st, 2018: $229,236 

 

2018 Income 

TBID Funding received 1/1/18 through 12/31/18: $915,798 

Membership income:   $29,875 

Web Advertising:   $16,890 

County marketing grant:  $6,942 

Miscellaneous revenue:  $913 

Total Income received 2018: $970,418 

 
Expenses 
Advertising/Marketing:  $445,490 
Grants/Special Projects:  $81,720 
Travel & Conventions:  $58,291 
Personnel Costs:   $253,881 
Contract services:   $57,657 

Facilities/equipment:   $6,659 

Operations:    $10,642 

Other types of expenses:  $6,409 

Total expenses 2018:   $920,749 

 

Operating balance as of December 31st, 2018: $276,958 

 
Membership 
We receive TBID funding from 35 lodging properties and currently have 208 members that pay 
a basic membership fee of $250, a nonprofit fee of $125, and trade members where services 
are traded for membership such as wine, catering, photography. We held 3 networking 
receptions that were well attended throughout the year. 

Page 24 of 120

Linda
Attachment 1



 

2 | P a g e  
 

 
Annual Meeting 

VisitSYV held their Annual Meeting on June 12, 2018 at Hotel Corque, with over 100 Santa Ynez 

Valley residents, hospitality professionals, and media in attendance. The organization 

introduced the 2018-2020 term Board of Directors and recognized a hospitality professional 

who exhibited outstanding customer service and spirit, going above and beyond to brand the 

Santa Ynez Valley as an all-welcoming destination. Spirit of the Valley recipient Maeapple 

Chaney (Refugio Winery), was honored by Visit the Santa Ynez Valley’s President & CEO, Shelby 

Sim, and Board of Directors at the meeting. 

Marketing (January 1, 2018 – December 31, 2018) 
 
Santa Ynez Valley 2018 Marketing Campaign 
The 2018 VisitSYV Marketing Campaign consists of VisitSYV as the sole stakeholder with $200k 

invested in a new annual campaign. DVA Advertising & PR Agency continues to be our agency of 

record. VisitSYV is pleased to report on the metrics supporting the benefits of the marketing 

program. 2018 marketing results are detailed below. 

Creative 
VisitSYV’s 2018 marketing program showcased consistent brand creative (featuring a branded 
logotype, font, and an “SYV” themed headline). The creative campaign plays on the region’s 
initials to speak to the valley’s unique atmosphere & offerings, while new photography 
demonstrates the Santa Ynez Valley’s continuous beauty married with evolving assets. 
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 Print 

VisitSYV 2018 Campaign creative was featured in the following print in 2018: 

• Gentry Destinations, April/May 2018 issue (Circulation: 107,200) 

• Sunset Magazine SoCal Insider, April 2018 issue (Circulation: 1,052,000) 

• Bon Appetit, May 2018 issue (Circulation: 25,000) 

• Los Angeles Magazine, May 2018 issue (Circulation: 4,850,000) 

• Gentry Destinations, August/September 2018 issue (Circulation: 107,200) 

• Gentry, August 2018 issue (Circulation: 107,000)  

• Gentry Destinations, August/September 2018 (Circulation: 107,200)  

• Bon Appetit, September 2018 issue (Circulation: 25,000) 

• Sunset Travel Chronicles, October 2018 issue (Circulation: 1,052,000) 

• Gentry, October 2018 issue (Circulation: 107,000) 

Digital 

In 2018 VisitSYV continued to use the best performing digital channels. We used digital display 

for awareness and brand and paid social and sponsored content for engagement and 

conversion. Video ads were also introduced in 2018.  

See the metrics below for digital advertising in 2018: 

Google Display 

Impressions: 1,117,199 

Clicks: 1,594 

CTR: 0.14%  

Google Search  

Impressions: 25,591 

Clicks: 782 

CTR: 3.06% 

Facebook (includes Instagram and Retargeting) 

Impressions: 3,046,146 

Clicks: 42,410 

CTR: 1.39% 
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Public Relations 

Public relations efforts for 2018 focused on outreach to major regional and national media 

outlets, drive markets including Los Angeles, San Diego, and San Francisco, and an increased 

outreach effort targeting Santa Barbara airport direct flight markets (Dallas, Denver, Phoenix, 

Portland, Seattle). Following is an overview of year-end circulation and values, a list of media 

visits coordinated, and a list of media invitations and press releases distributed. A complete 

recap of 2018 clippings can be found here. 

• Total value of public relations media coverage for 2018 = $1,618,128* 

• Total circulation of editorial coverage for 2018 = 64,797,087 

• Total unique visitors/month of editorial coverage for 2018: 1,757,428,954 

*PR value is calculated by multiplying the advertising rate times the size of the story, and then doubling 

that number to reflect the added value of editorial coverage 

Hosted Media Visits  

• Bonnie Graves, South Bay Magazine & Girl Meets Grape – Jan. 26-28 

• Julie Arnan, 425 Magazine – Feb. 9-11 

• Rich Rubin, Passport Magazine – March 28-30 

• Luke Sykora, Sunset Magazine – April 16-18 

• Visit California Canadian FAM – April 25-26 

o Candace Dericx, Life in Pleasantville 

o Adrienne Matei, Nuvo Magazine 

o Sara Samson, WestJet Magazine 

o Jessica Padykula, Travel Life 

• Steven Kenniff, Must Do Travels – April 27-28 

• Carol Guttery, Wayfaring Views – May 14-15 

• Allison Arthur & Cara Rank, Dishing – June 3-8 

• Kate Loweth, Red Tricycle – June 13-15 

• Julie Wolfson, Cool Hunting – July 2-3 

• Lindsey Hunter Lopez, LA Parent – July 8-10 

• Caitlin Agnew/Jordan Blaine/and Kara Mercer, Bellevue Lifestyle - July 17-20 

• Jamie Siebrase, St. Louis Homes & Lifestyles – Aug. 12-15 
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• Christopher Elliott, USA Today - Oct. 5-9 

• Mehera Bonner, Marie Claire – Oct. 25-27 

• Kelvin Bellamy, LA Travel – Nov. 16-18 

• Lisa Johnson, House & Garden – Dec. 7-8 

Press Releases 

• Jan. 8, 2018 – Santa Ynez Valley Restaurant Week returns Jan. 21-27 

• March 5, 2018 – SPRING INVITATION: You're invited to the Santa Ynez Valley 

• May 1, 2018 – Santa Ynez Valley wine country & families: a perfect, if unexpected, 

pairing 

• May 16, 2018 – The Santa Ynez Valley offers an unforgettable summer experience 

• July 31, 2018 – Imbibe in comfort, style, and safety with a Santa Ynez Valley wine tour 

• Sept. 7, 2018 – FALL INVITATION: An invitation to visit the Santa Ynez Valley in fall 

• Sept. 7, 2018 – Fall a fresh experience in the Santa Ynez Valley 

• Nov. 13, 2018 – The holiday season is best spent in the Santa Ynez Valley 

 
2018 Santa Ynez Valley Destination Guide 
VisitSYV worked with Griffin Publishing to create the 2018 destination guide, with over 90 pages 
covering the Santa Ynez Valley. 95,000 copies were printed, with distribution taking place via 
trade shows, California festivals, the Solvang Visitors Center, the Buellton Visitors Center, the 
Santa Barbara Visitors Center, and direct mailings to 18,339 homes in Santa Barbara, the Santa 
Ynez Valley, Laguna and Newport Beach. The guides are also distributed on a monthly basis to 
our hotels, museums, and popular restaurants and retailers. The guides are also being 
distributed to the 35 cruise ships that enter the region through Santa Barbara.  
 
Website 
From January 1, 2018 – December 31, 2018, VisitSYV.com received 364,729 pageviews from 

148,323 unique users. The site has also garnered 14,184 clicks to our members’ individual 

websites, and 7,040* clicks to book for VisitSYV hotels. The top most popular pages on the site 

are as follows: (1) Homepage; (2) Restaurant Week; (3) Wine Tasting.   

*Clicks to book includes clicks off the lodging page, Jackrabbit booking bar searches, and clicks to the Jackrabbit 

lodging page from the millennial and baby boomer landing pages. 
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JackRabbit Systems  

VisitSYV renewed our contract with JackRabbit Systems, a booking widget that lives on 

VisitSYV.com. This added feature is a major benefit to consumers, allowing them to search 

rates, dates and hotel availability directly on VisitSYV.com, while also allowing SYVTBID 

hoteliers to secure the leads without paying any additional agency fees.  

VisitSYV Promotions 

SYV Restaurant week (January 21-27, 2018) is an annual VisitSYV promotion which ties in with 

Visit California’s Restaurant Month promotion. DineSYV.com received 23,410 pageviews with 

over 3,000 users from San Francisco and 2,000 users from Los Angeles; remaining users came 

from the Central Coast. VisitSYV’s  Restaurant Week advertising campaign reached consumers 

via Facebook (46,722 impressions, 2,104 clicks to DineSYV.com, and an average 2.53% CTR), 3 

issues of The Independent (40,000 printed), the Santa Ynez Valley Star, and printed poster (100 

printed) and postcard distribution (4,000 printed). Restaurant Week presents an opportunity 

for increased engagement and visitation for our website, and acts as a great opportunity to 

showcase our members and show appreciation. A total of 30 VisitSYV restaurants participated, 

5 hoteliers offered packages and discounts, and an added 9 wineries participated as a pairing 

feature. Please see analytic reports below. 

DineSYV.com* 

Total Page views for DineSYV.com: 23,410  

Avg Time Spent on page: 00:04:07 (15.39% YOY increase) 

Top Traffic Sources 

Google: 9,504  

Direct: 5,663* direct traffic can be attributed to print advertising, posters & postcards 

Facebook: 3,671 

SolvangUSA.com: 2,474 (786.74% YOY increase from 279 in 2017) 

  

Social Media Stats 

• Our Facebook audience has increased to 16,520 likes.  

• VisitSYV Twitter account has increased to 4,105 followers.  

• VisitSYV Instagram has increased to 4,843 followers.  
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Additional Print Advertising 
 
2018 California Visitors Guide & Central Coast Insert 
VisitSYV partnered with the California Central Coast Tourism Council for an insert listing and a 
directory listing in the Official 2017 California Visitors Guide (500,000 copies printed). 
Distribution takes place via newsstand copies, Visit California and Sunset events, direct mailings 
to qualified consumers, and targeted distribution via auto clubs, rental car agencies, visitor 
centers, and more. The co-op partnership allowed for both a featured listing in the insert, and a 
featured listing in the guide’s directory, doubling VisitSYV’s coverage within the guide.  
 
Santa Barbara Visitors Magazine 
VisitSYV sponsored a 4 page editorial spread on the Santa Ynez Valley in Visit Santa Barbara’s 
annual visitors magazine (100,000 copies printed). VisitSYV partners, Solvang Conference & 
Visitors Bureau and Buellton Chamber & Visitors Bureau, also sponsored a single page each, 
allowing the Santa Ynez Valley to have a 6+ page spread.  
 
Santa Barbara Seasons Magazine 
VisitSYV purchased a 1/3 page ad in the Spring 2018 issue of Seasons Magazine (23,000+ copies 
printed). Santa Barbara Seasons is mailed to southern Santa Barbara County’s 11,635 residents 
with a recorded minimum household income of $250,000. In addition, 12,000 copies of each 
issue are allocated for prominent display within more than 3,000 guest rooms at Santa Barbara 
County hotels and inns, providing access to more than 350,000 visitors each issue. Seasons is 
also sold on newsstands throughout the county and by subscription, and is complimentary at 
many hospitality locations and events. 
 
Westways: Discover March/April 2018 
VisitSYV partnered with the Buellton Chamber & Visitors Bureau & Solvang Conference & 
Visitors Bureau for a 2 page advertorial co-op spread in Westways’ Discover March/April 
edition. This special insert went to 500,000 Westways households in California with household 
incomes of +$75,000. This was our fourth annual Westways co-op with the Buellton Chamber & 
Visitors Bureau, and the third time bringing on the Solvang Conference & Visitors Bureau as a 
Westways partner.   
 
Touring & Tasting Magazine 
VisitSYV purchased a 2-page advertorial spread in the Spring/Summer issue of Touring & Tasting 
magazine (60,000 copies printed). Touring & Tasting is distributed nationally to both consumers 
and travel and meeting planners via newstands, regional distribution, and consumer wine 
events. 
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Los Angeles Magazine, Central Coast Wine Edition  
To increase visitation after the wildfires and resulting Montecito Debris Flow, VisitSYV 

participated in a major Central Coast advertorial in Los Angeles Magazine, purchasing a half 

page ad and half page advertorial. The Santa Ynez Valley received 4 additional pages of editorial 

in the feature.  Los Angeles Magazine has the largest print circulation of any regional magazine 

with a circulation of 4,850,000. 

Edible Santa Barbara County Summer 2018 Issue 
VisitSYV purchased a half page ad in Edible Santa Barbara’s Summer 2018 issue with a 
circulation of 16,000. The Summer issue includes a Santa Barbara County Farm Guide pullout 
insert which provides a visual reference for visiting and supporting local farms and agriculture 
that readers refer to and use all year long. 
 
Santa Ynez Valley Star 
VisitSYV continues to sponsor the monthly events calendar in the Santa Ynez Valley Star 
newspaper, and receives a monthly 1/4 page ad, which is used to highlight upcoming special 
events and draw users back to our events calendar at VisitSYV.com/events.   
 
2018 Central Coast Tourism Council (CCTC) Map  
VisitSYV purchased a listing and “Hidden Gems” callout and image on the annual Central Coast 
Tourism Council map, with 200,000 full color maps printed and distributed annually via 
California Welcome Centers, Central Coast visitor centers, airports and additional locations 
across the state of California, internationally, and through worldwide tradeshows and media 
events. 
 
Additional Display/Onsite Activations  
 
Santa Barbara International Film Festival 
VisitSYV was the proud sponsor of the Santa Ynez Valley Lounge at the Santa Barbara 
International Film Festival, January 31 – February 10, 2018, for the third year in a row. We 
hosted educational film related seminars and panel discussions during the day and happy hours 
in the evening. Our full screen ad was played before over 300 screenings during the festival, 
and our logo was included before each tribute and award ceremony. Our goal was to increase 
VisitSYV’s presence within Santa Barbara County and inspire the 90,000 festival attendees from 
around the globe to spend a few days with us here is the SYV, and also to collect data from VIP 
attendees in our lounge through a giveaway package.  
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Figueroa Mountain Brewing Co. Lagerville Sponsorship 
VisitSYV became the glass sponsor for Figueroa Mountain Brewing Co.’s first annual Lagerville, 
an event held on Saturday, May 19th, which brought together independent brewers and craft 
beer fans in an intimate setting in Buellton, celebrating the historical and approachable lager 
beer styles. 
 
Airport Digital Display Ad Buy 
VisitSYV continues to run digital display advertising in the Santa Barbara Airport which 
encourages travelers to visit the Santa Ynez Valley, highlighting that we are only 30 minutes 
north of the airport. Our ads play on a digital screen strategically placed by baggage claim and 
tourist information. Ads began June 1, 2017 and continue through June 2019. In addition, 
VisitSYV has partnered with the Solvang Conference & Visitors Bureau via Certified Folder to 
display our 2018 Destination Guide in the airport, featured just below our digital display 
advertising.  
 
Video Asset Development  
VisitSYV contracted with Lure Films to produce a 2:30 longform commercial, :30 commercial, 
and photography assets to coincide with the video marketing efforts. The longform commercial 
was published in the month of June on YouTube, Facebook and Instagram. VisitSYV contracted 
with Lure a second time before the year end to develop 2019 video creative, set to debut after 
next year’s Santa Ynez Valley Restaurant Weeks promotion.  
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2018 Emmy Awards Gifting Suite  
VisitSYV participated in the 2018 Emmy Awards Gifting Suite produced by Gavin B Kelly 
Productions in Los Angeles, September 14th and 15th. Over the course of 2 days, we provided 
gift packages to over 50 actors, entertainers and influencers, with the goal of elevating the 
Santa Ynez Valley brand, bringing repeat luxury business to our region, and gaining exposure 
through the talents’ social media channels. The Santa Ynez Valley brand was featured 
prominently on a morning segment on KTLA.  
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
#Chroma Activation 
VisitSYV partnered with Visit Santa Barbara, Go Goleta, Explore Buellton, the Solvang 
Conference & Visitors Bureau, and Santa Maria Valley to create an immersive, on-site activation 
in Glendale to inspire travel to Santa Barbara County. In order to promote the unique offerings 
of each region in Santa Barbara County in a new and creative way through one cohesive, yet 
memorable, experience, we created an experiential, in-market campaign that invited 
consumers to visit, learn, and engage in a new and creative way - through an Instagrammable 
travel pop-up shop. Held at the Americana on Brand in Glendale November  
1 – 4, 2018, the pop-up received 4,009 in-store interactions, 31,560 social engagements, and 
2,421,995 total impressions. For a complete event breakdown, find the full report here. A recap 
video of the event can also be found here.  
 
KEYT Commercials 
For the third year in a row, VisitSYV aired 30 second commercials on KEYT and KKFX 
encouraging winter shopping and visitation. From November 23 – December 31, 2018, VisitSYV 
had a total of 120 thirty-second commercials featuring the Santa Ynez Valley air on KEYT and 
KKFX.  
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Comcast/Spectrum Commercials 
VisitSYV further boosted our new 30 second commercial using Comcast and Spectrum Reach to 
target drive market households in the Greater Los Angeles and Greater Bay Areas from 
November 20 – January 1, 2019. The commercial aired 8,614 times in Los Angeles and the Bay 
Area and reached an estimated 990,722 households in the Bay Area alone. 
 
Trade Shows 
 
SF/Bay Area Travel & Adventure 2018 
VisitSYV had a booth at the SF/Bay Area Travel & Adventure Show at the Santa Clara 
Convention Center, February 17-18, 2018. Vice President of Marketing, Danielle Laudon Ruse, 
and Digital Coordinator & Member Services, Marisa Yott, engaged with consumers over the 
course of the 2 day show, and distributed over 450 SYV Destination Guides. The Bay Area Travel 
& Adventure Show continues to serve as an excellent way to gain engagement and brand 
awareness in the Bay Area, one of our top two drive markets. 72% of show attendees earn over 
$100,000, demonstrating a high value target consumer.  
 
 
Los Angeles Travel & Adventure 2018 
VisitSYV had a booth at the Los Angeles Travel & Adventure Show at the Los Angeles 
Convention Center, February 24-25, 2018. President & CEO, Shelby Sim, and Vice President of 
Marketing, Danielle Laudon Ruse, engaged with consumers over the course of the 2 day show, 
and distributed over 550 SYV Destination Guides. The 2018 Los Angeles Travel & Adventure 
Show was another excellent show for increased engagement and brand awareness in Los 
Angeles, one of our top two drive markets. 63% of show attendees earn over $100,000, also 
demonstrating a high value target consumer.  
  
IPW 
VisitSYV partnered with the Solvang Conference & Visitors Bureau & Buellton Visitors Bureau 
for 3 days of intensive travel buyer & media appointments at IPW May 19-23, 2018. IPW is the 
travel industry's premier international marketplace and the largest generator of travel to the 
U.S. In just three days of pre-scheduled business appointments, more than 6,000 
delegates representing U.S. travel organizations from every region of the USA and international 
and domestic buyers and media from 70+ countries meet face-to-face to conduct future travel 
business to the USA. Buyers & media received flash drives with Santa Ynez Valley lodging 
options, press releases, itineraries, story ideas and photography for their catalogues. 
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IMEX America 
VisitSYV partnered with Alisal Guest Ranch & Resort and Hotel Corque for a Santa Ynez Valley 
branded booth at IMEX America in Las Vegas, Nevada, October 15 - 18, 2018. IMEX is a leading 
group business travel trade show in the U.S., connecting over 3,000 meeting, group business 
and incentive buyers with destinations and host hotels. Shelby Sim and Danielle Laudon Ruse 
held face-to-face meetings with buyers considering the Santa Ynez Valley for their 2019-2020 
group business.  
 

Education  

Spirit of the Valley  
2018 saw the third year of our Spirit of the Valley education program. We developed our SPIRIT 
program to enhance the visitor experience. We held our SPIRIT program at Rideau Winery in 
Solvang on March 29, 2018 and had over 30 hospitality professionals in attendance. The 
program teaches Four Seasons style customer service as well as information about each of our 
communities such as things to do after 5pm and activities for families.  
 

Staff, Board and Member Development  

Visit California Travel Outlook 

Shelby Sim and Danielle Laudon Ruse attended the Visit California Travel Outlook in Anaheim at 

Disney’s Grand Californian Hotel February 14 – 15, 2018. VisitSYV staff was able to network 

with Visit California’s international representatives and fostered both new and existing 

relationships. Staff also learned about current travel trends and strategies. 

DMA West Tech Summit 

Danielle Laudon Ruse attended DMA West’s three day tech conference in Spokane, Washington 

March 21 – 23, 2018, which included expert-led general sessions, labs and workshops. Laudon 

Ruse learned about DMO marketplace changes and how to evolve and adapt VisitSYV’s current 

marketing and engagement strategies. Topics included how DMO’s can better partner in the 

Google content landscape, how to integrate influencers into an entire campaign, how to 

analyze and implement strategy via Google Analytics, and how to use video to effectively 

market your destination.  
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Central Coast Tourism Council Planning Retreat & Conference 

Shelby Sim & Danielle Laudon attended the Central Coast Tourism Council (CCTC) Planning 

Retreat Mixer which kicked off the CCTC Retreat & Planning Conference on Wednesday, April 

18, 2018 at Hotel Corque in Solvang. Danielle attended the three-day retreat and conference 

Wednesday, April 18 - Friday, April 20, 2018, and learned about current tourism trends via Visit 

California and contributed to CCTC’s revised objectives, including their digital brand strategy. 

VisitSYV actively participates in CCTC to learn from fellow Destination Marketing Organizations 

and to keep the Santa Ynez Valley top-of-mind in marketing the Central Coast brand.    

DMA West’s 29th Annual Leadership Summit 

Shelby Sim attended the DMA West Leadership Summit, July 30 – August 1, 2018 in Walla 

Walla, Washington. The Leadership Summit provides insight into the evolving challenges facing 

DMOs and those who lead them. Sim participated in face-to-face networking with CEO 

colleagues to garner industry intelligence and resources and explored industry priorities to 

determine how to best market the Santa Ynez Valley and lead our organization. The program 

included Peer Panels along with open discussion sessions, operational roundtables and the 

popular Marketing Idea Exchange. 

2018 Board Retreat 

VisitSYV held a Board retreat on Monday, November 5th Brave & Maiden. Items discussed were 

the history of the organization, immediate goals (including promoting VisitSYV amongst the 

community, new website updates, 2019 creative strategy, direct flight markets, and renewal 

strategy) and long-term goals (visitation from feeder markets and business retreat strategy for 

midweek visitation). 

Central Coast Tourism Council Annual Workshop 

Danielle Laudon attended the Central Coast Tourism Council (CCTC) Annual Workshop on 

Thursday, November 15 – Friday November 16, 2018 at Portola Hotel & Spa in Monterey. This 

workshop checks in on the progress of the organization’s objectives identified at the Annual 

Retreat. Danielle contributed to CCTC’s public relations, internal marketing, digital branding and 

industry relations strategies while networking and sharing ideas with DMO leaders from the 

Ventura, Santa Barbara, San Luis Obispo and Monterey regions.  
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California Wine School  

Staff members Shelby Sim, Marisa Yott, Danielle Laudon Ruse and Board Chairman Linda 

Johansen attended and became certified at the newly formed California Wine School’s first 

level one session on December 3 – 4, 2018 at Hotel Corque. The 2-day course covered Santa 

Barbara and California AVA's, Santa Barbara wine history, viticulture, enology, wine club 

retention and growth, comparative tasting and wine flavor origins, and food and wine pairing. 

School founder Wes Hagen noted the goal of the course is to give hospitality professionals 

advanced working knowledge, so they can get visitors even more excited about our region, 

ultimately driving more traffic, retail sales, and wine club growth. 

Grants and special projects  
The purpose of our grants program continues to be to assist with publicity and outreach for 
valley events which encourage overnight stays. Primary consideration goes to events which 
occur mid-week (Sunday to Thursday) and/or in off-season. For special projects we award 
scholarships to Hospitality students and Education programs. These funds in 2018 were 
awarded to the following; 

• Spirit of The Santa Ynez Valley Education program: $7,226.91 

• People Helping People’s Annual Golf Tournament: $750 

• Awarded one $2,500 Scholarship grant to Allan Handcock Hospitality student: $2,500 

• Taste of Solvang, produced by Solvang Conference & Visitors Bureau: $3,500 

• Wine & Chili Festival, produced by the Buellton Visitors Bureau: $3,500 

• NatureTrack Film Festival, produced by NatureTrack: $4,000  

• Garagiste Festival, produced by Garagiste Events, Inc.: $3,000 

• Lagerville, produced by Figueroa Mountain Brewing Co: $2,000 

• Back to the Futures, produced by the Pioneers of Santa Barbara County: $1,500 

• Brandy Clark Concert, produced by Solvang Festival Theater: $3,000  

• Jazz & Beyond Concert Series, produced by Solvang Festival Theater: $2,000 

• Polo Classic, produced by People Helping People: $2,000 

• Los Olivos Jazz & Olive Festival, produced by Los Olivos Rotary: $2,000 

• 4th of July Fireworks Celebration, produced by SYV Rotary: $4,000 

• Los Alamos Old Days, produced by Los Alamos Valley Men's Club: $3,000 

• Mat Kearney Concert (midweek), produced by Solvang Festival Theater: $2,500 

• Day in the Country, produced by Los Olivos Chamber: $3,000  

• Grape Stomp, produced by Solvang Conference & Visitors Bureau: $4,000 
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• Danish Days, produced by Solvang Conference & Visitors Bureau: $4,500 

• Vintners 5 Miler, produced by Santa Barbara Vintners Foundation: $1,500 

• 4th of July Fireworks Celebration, produced by PARC Foundation: $500 

• Olde Fashioned Christmas, produced by Los Olivos Chamber: $3,250 

• Julefest, produced by Solvang Conference & Visitors Bureau: $3,750 

• 2nd Annual Pioneers of Santa Barbara Winemaker Event, produced by Pioneers of Santa 
Barbara County: $500 

• Scarecrow Festival, produced by Solvang Chamber of Commerce: $500 

• Figueroa Mountain Gran Fondo, produced by Carmichael Training Systems: $5,000  
 
For a total of $72,976.91 
 

California Hotel & Lodging Association 
VisitSYV renewed its annual contract with CH&LA, the California Hotel and Lodging Association. 
VisitSYV provides each of our hotel members with a CH&LA Membership. CH&LA provides our 
members with legislative advocacy, educational training, communication, and cost-saving 
programs. They also support strategic alliances to promote the value of California travel and 
tourism. 
  

Collaborations with Santa Barbara County DMOs and other organizations 
VisitSYV collaborates actively with other county destination marketing organizations, Solvang 
CVB, Buellton Visitor Bureau, the Santa Barbara County Vintners Association, the Buellton, 
Solvang, Los Olivos, and Santa Ynez Chambers as well as the Santa Barbara Film Commission, 
The Chumash Foundation, Visit Santa Barbara, Go Goleta, Explore Lompoc, and the Santa 
Barbra County Association of Governments.   
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Public comment  
Members of the board and the Executive Director continue to be called upon to make written 
and/or verbal public comment on a number of hotel and tourism related issues. Each question 
is raised on a board agenda and voted upon by the board, or authorized by the president, 
before comment is made. Hearings and correspondence as needed by Executive Director Shelby 
Sim, and, when needed, Linda Johansen, President. 

 
California Wildfires Statement 

We participated in a state joint-hearing in Healdsburg between the Assembly and Senate 

Committees regarding post-disaster recovery. Our President, Shelby Sim was a witness on the 

panel about the local impacts and recovery efforts on tourism and hospitality in our region. 

There were also representatives from Sonoma and Napa, which were also impacted by wildfires 

and rely on visitation for much of the local economy.   

 
 
Organization 
On January 1st, Shelby Sim was promoted to President and CEO and signed a 5-year contract. 
Linda Johansen’s title was changed from President to Chairman, Barry Prescott’s title changed 
from Vice President to Vice Chairman. Danielle Laudon Ruse was promoted to Vice President of 
Marketing. Marisa Yott was brought on as a full-time employee (from part-time) as Digital 
Coordinator and Member Services. Felipe Murcia left the Fess Parker Wine Country Inn, and 
was replaced on the board by Jamie Farlow, Director of Marketing for the Fess Parker Wine 
Country Inn. 
 
We held our annual elections in May/June, with the only change to the board being Jonathan 
Rosenson (Owner Mirabelle Inn and First & Oak restaurant) replacing Barry Prescott as a 
Solvang Hotelier taking effect after our July board meeting.  
 
We have board elections every year in June. Linda Johansen was voted in as Chairman, and 
Andrew Economon (Chumash Hospitality) as Vice Chairman. The board positions are a 
staggered two-year term. Directors must hold a position of Owner, Director, or General 
Manager with their perspective business. 
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The board continues to meet monthly, normally the 2nd Thursday of the month, 9:00 a.m. at 
The Chumash Casino. The board consists of nine individuals, seven of which are from the hotel 
industry and the other two are an at-large representation of the membership base. 

 
Staff & Board of Directors  
President & CEO - Shelby Sim 
Vice President of Marketing - Danielle Laudon Ruse 
Digital Coordinator & Member Services – Marisa Yott 
The board members are: 
Chairman – Linda Johansen, Owner, Pea Soup Andersen’s Inn, Buellton  
Vice Chairman – Andrew Economon, Executive Director of Hospitality,  
Chumash Enterprises, including Hotel Corque and Hadsten House 
Secretary – Sherrie FitzGerald, Director of Marketing, Alisal Guest Ranch and Resort, Solvang 
Treasurer – Bryan Maroun, General Manager, Sunstone Winery, Santa Ynez 
Jamie Farlow, Marketing Director, Fess Parker Wine Country Inn & Spa, Los Olivos 
Budi Kazali, Owner, Ballard Inn, Ballard 
Karla Azahar, General Manager, SYV Marriott, Buellton 
Jonathan Rosenson, Owner, Maribelle inn  
Luca Crestanelli, Owner/Executive Chef, SY Kitchen, Santa Ynez  
 

 

Respectfully submitted by: 
Shelby Sim, President & CEO 
Santa Ynez Valley Hotel Association, dba Visit the Santa Ynez Valley 
Shelby@VisitSYV.com  
PO Box 633, Solvang, CA 93464  
www.visitsyv.com, 805-451-6038 
  
 
Please see next two pages for 2018 (actual) and 2019 budget information 
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2018 Budget information
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2019 Budget information 

 

 

Page 42 of 120



Page 43 of 120



CITY OF BUELLTON 
City Council Agenda Staff Report 

 
City Manager Review:  MPB 

Council Agenda Item No.:         6 
 
 
To:     The Honorable Mayor and City Council         
 
From: Shannel Zamora, Finance Director 
 
Meeting Date:  April 11, 2019 
 
Subject:  Fiscal Year 2019-20 & 2020-21 Requests for Funding from Non-

Profit Agencies 
______________________________________________________________________________ 
 
BACKGROUND 
 

The City has received funding requests from six outside non-profit agencies exclusive of 
those agencies already included as line items in the City’s budget.  This funding is 
allocated each year through the Non-Departmental Budget Unit of the General Fund. Last 
year, the City allocated a total of $88,638 (which included the Senior Center).  The total 
amount requested this fiscal year is $63,000 (which excludes the Senior Center as noted 
below). 
 
On March 28, 2019, City Council authorized staff to consider the Senior Center as a 
budget line item as part of the regular budget process similar to other agencies (PAWS 
Park, Botanic Garden – except funding would be part of the Non-Departmental budget). 
The amount of funding for the Senior Center allocated for FY 2019-20 was $65,000. At 
the meeting, City Council decided to cap the amount of Non-Departmental budget funds 
available for other agencies at $25,000.  
 
On February 20, 2019, outside agencies were contacted and instructed to submit their 
funding requests for Fiscal Year 2019-20 with the possibility of City Council applying 
the two percent increase for fiscal year 2020-21.  
 
Each agency will be available to provide a three-minute statement communicating their 
funding request. 
 
General Fund:  Non-Departmental: 

 
1. Santa Ynez Valley People Helping People 
Representative – Dean Palius, CEO 

    Total 19-20 Requested amount - $19,000     Received FY 18-19 - $9,568 
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2. Foodbank of Santa Barbara County 
Representative – Sunita Jethmalani, Director of Grants 
FY 19-20 Requested amount - $10,000        Received FY 18-19 - $6,528            

3. Santa Ynez Valley Fruit & Vegetable Rescue 
Representative – Amy Derryberry, Executive Director 
FY 19-20 Requested amount - $9,000 Received FY 18-19 - $5,916 
 
4. NatureTrack 
Representative – Sue Eisaguirre, Executive Director 
FY 19-20 Requested amount - $2,000 Received FY 18-19 - $1,836 
 
5. Zaca Center Preschool 
Representative – Shelley Grand, Preschool Director 
FY 19-20 Requested Amount - $8,000         Received FY 18-19 - $3,917 
 
6. California Organization for Public Safety, Inc. (C.O.P.S.) 
Representative – Eddie Hsueh, President 
FY 19-20 Requested Amount - $15,000       Received FY 18-19 - $0 
 

FISCAL IMPACT 
 
Funding requests total $63,000 in 2019-20. The City Council funded outside agencies a 
total of $88,638 in 2018-19 (including the Senior Center, which as noted above is now a 
separate budget line item) and capped the amount available for 2019-20 to $25,000. The 
General Fund anticipates revenue growth in 2019-20 to allow for an increase in funding, 
therefore the City Council could consider raising the amount available for funding.  

 
RECOMMENDATION 
 

Staff recommends that the City Council determine the allocations for the 2019-20 
funding requests from non-profits that will be reflected in the Non-Departmental budget 
unit of the General Fund (001-410-67200). A two percent increase will be allocated the 
following year. 

 
ATTACHMENTS 

 
Attachment 1 – Santa Ynez Valley People Helping People – Funding Request 
Attachment 2 – Foodbank of Santa Barbara County – Funding Request 
Attachment 3 – Santa Ynez Valley Fruit & Vegetable Rescue – Funding Request 
Attachment 4 – NatureTrack – Funding Request 
Attachment 5 – Zaca Center Preschool – Funding Request 
Attachment 6 – California Organization for Public Safety, Inc. – Funding Request 
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March 1, 2019 

 

 

Shannel Zamora, Finance Director 

City of Buellton 

107 W. Highway 246 

P.O. Box 1819 

Buellton, CA 93427 

 

RE: Foodbank of Santa Barbara County’s FY 2019-20 Grant Request to the City of 

Buellton 

 

Dear Shannel, 

 

Foodbank of Santa Barbara County is very grateful for this opportunity to submit a Letter 

of Request to the City of Buellton. We are very appreciative of your past generous 

support, which has enabled us to provide nutritious foods including fresh produce, and 

nutrition education to Buellton residents.  

 

BRIEF DESCRIPTION OF FUNDING REQUEST AND USE OF FUNDS 

 

Foodbank respectfully requests FY 2019-20 grant in the amount of $10,000. Grant funds will 

pay for the purchase of nutritious foods and fresh produce that we will distribute to food-

insecure Buellton residents, free of cost.  

 

ORGANIZATIONAL DESCRIPTION 

 

Foodbank of Santa Barbara County's mission is to end hunger and transform the health of 

Santa Barbara County through good nutrition. For past 36 years, as the only food bank in the 

region, Foodbank has served the critical needs of Santa Barbara County, operating from two 

warehouses in Santa Barbara and Santa Maria. To procure food, we collaborate with 

national, state and local growers, producers and food manufacturers. We distribute food 

through a countywide network of 300 non-profit partners, health and nutrition programs and 

schools. The Foodbank brings together community resources to provide short-term and 

long-term solutions that improve food insecurity, access to healthy food, and nutrition 

education to better the health of our low-income clients. 

 

In FY18, Foodbank and 300 non-profit partners provided nutritional resources to 173,593 

unduplicated low-income individuals.  

 10 million pounds of food including 4 million pounds of fresh produce reached 

those in need in entire Santa Barbara County 

 67,073 (39%) were children (0-17 years old) 

 81,497 (47%) adults (18-59 years old) 

 25,023 (14%) seniors (60 years or older) 

 96,081 (55%) served were female 

 124,728 (72%) served were of Hispanic/Latino ethnicity 

 2,107 volunteers contributed 24,754 hours of their valuable time and service assisting 

with various programs 
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COMMUNITY IMPACT AND MEASURABLE OUTCOMES: 

 

We have learnt from Feeding America’s “Hunger in America 2014” report that 75% of Foodbank client 

households have incomes below Federal Poverty Level. 64% have annual income of $10,000 or less. 

Research indicates that food insecurity as an element of poverty negatively affects children’s cognitive, physical, 

social, and academic outcomes, and leads to higher rates of obesity, diabetes, and poor mental health in adults.  

In seniors, food-insecurity puts them at higher risk for depression, asthma, and high blood pressure. 

Cottage Health's 2016 Community Health Needs Assessment report indicates food insecurity as one of the five 

priority health areas that we need to address in our community, and that Hispanics had nearly twice the rate of food 

insecurity as non-Hispanics.  

Cottage’s Data2go* online mapping and data tool shows that 10% of Buellton households have incomes below 

poverty and 50.8%  of Buellton residents experience food insecurity. * http://www.cottagedata2go.org/  

 
Aligned with Foodbank's mission to end hunger and transform the health of Santa Barbara County through good 

nutrition, the overall goal of our food distribution program in the City of Buellton is to combat food insecurity by 

distributing a variety of nutritious foods and fresh produce to all food-insecure Buellton residents.  

 

Program Outcomes and Evaluation: 

 

In FY19-20, with your valuable grant, we will serve 2,600 unduplicated clients that will receive 140,000 total 

pounds of nutritious foods, including 103,000 pounds of fresh produce, free of cost.  We will distribute food in 

partnership with Buellton Senior Center, Buellton Boys & Girls Club and through our Mobile Farmers Market 

operating in Buellton.  73% of all foods received by Buellton residents will be fresh produce. 

 

Of all the clients served, we expect 61% of all clients to be Caucasian/White and 39% to be Hispanic/Latinos. 

70% of all clients will be seniors (60 years and older); 69% of all clients served will be females; and 33% of 

all clients served will be Female Heads of Households. 

 

All clients will additionally benefit by receiving nutrition education, which emphasizes the importance of 

choosing healthy foods over cheap fast foods and how this choice affects their long-term health; eligibility 

screening and enrollment to receive CalFresh/SNAP monthly benefits that they can use to purchase healthy 

foods and fresh produce.  We will provide these services at no cost to them. 

 

To track and calculate client data, we use our proprietary database, which compiles program site-specific 

client demographic data reported by partner agencies on a quarterly basis. To calculate food pounds data, we 

use the “Ceres” software, which helps with management of warehouse inventory. This software enables 

generating reports that indicate the total pounds and types of food such as fresh fruits and vegetables received 

and distributed by each partner agency and program site.  Using these analyses, we calculate the percentage of 

clients served and variety of food pounds distributed. 

 

To measure program effectiveness and impact in the community, we use RE-AIM (Reach, Effectiveness, 

Adoption, Implementation, and Maintenance) public health impact evaluation tool. Each RE-AIM domain is 

evaluated using series of tools and surveys, which measure different dimensions of social change and 

preventive health. Results are quantified into RE-AIM scores 0-10. Lower numbers signify room for growth; 

higher numbers signify effective programming.  

 

HOW FOODBANK SERVICES DIFFER FROM OTHER SIMILAR SERVICES 

 

While there are other organizations that distribute food to those in need, none operate on the same scale as the 

Foodbank or have the operational capacity to receive, sort, store and deliver food for distribution county wide.  
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Foodbank serves as a hub for 300 non-profit partners, social service programs and schools located throughout 

Santa Barbara County. The effectiveness of our services is linked to our unique relationships with partner 

agencies countywide that include Catholic Charities, YMCAs, schools, universities, churches, healthcare 

clinics, community centers, parks, and housing facilities, among others. These organizations obtain much of 

their food from the Foodbank, a greater percentage of which we provide to them free of cost.  

 

Each year, Foodbank holds Annual Summit to provide training to partners on food safety, especially refrigeration 

and transportation, in order to remain compliant with industry standards set by the Association of International 

Bakers (AIB) and required by Feeding America. All partners are required to record and report client data every 

quarter.  

 

Foodbank derives the following benefits from these strong community collaborations: 

 

 Enhanced community outreach, which provides increased access to our services for our clients countywide. 

 Sharing of resources, which avoids duplication of efforts that helps to serve the same target population 

efficiently. 

 Cross referrals for other partner services, which benefit our clients in need of these resources. 

 

We sincerely hope you will consider partnering with us again to transform the health of Buellton residents 

through good nutrition. Please do not hesitate to contact us if you have any questions or need more information. 

 

Thank you very much for your kind consideration of our request! 

 

With warm regards,  

 

 

 

Erik Talkin, Chief Executive Officer    Sunita Jethmalani, Director of Grants 

Phone: (805) 967-5741, Ext. 100      Phone: (805) 967-5741, Ext. 120  

Email: etalkin@foodbanksbc.org       Email: sjethmalani@foodbanksbc.org  

 

 

Enclosure: 

 

FY18 Audited financial statements 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 

 

To the Board of Directors of 
Foodbank of Santa Barbara County 

Report on the Financial Statements 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Foodbank of Santa Barbara County (a 
nonprofit organization), which comprise the statement of financial position as of June 30, 2018, and the 
related statements of activities, functional expenses, and cash flows for the year then ended, and the related 
notes to the financial statements. 

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in 
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes 
the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair 
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

Auditors’ Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted 
our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and 
the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the 
Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to 
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in 
the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the 
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. 
In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation 
and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in 
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s 
internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the 
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates 
made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements. 
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We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for 
our audit opinion. 

Opinion 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the 
financial position of Foodbank of Santa Barbara County as of June 30, 2018, and the changes in its net 
assets and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally 
accepted in the United States of America. 

Report on Summarized Comparative Information 

The Foodbank of Santa Barbara County’s 2017 financial statements were audited by other auditors who 
expressed an unmodified audit opinion on those audited financial statements in our report dated November 
15, 2017. In our opinion, the summarized comparative information presented herein as of and for the year 
ended June 30, 2017, is consistent, in all material respects, with the audited financial statements from 
which it has been derived. 

Other Matters 

Other Information 

Our audit was made for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements referred to in the 
first paragraph as a whole.  The accompanying management discussion and analysis on page 3 is presented 
for purposes of additional analysis and is not a required part of the above financial statements.  Such 
information is the responsibility of management and has not been subjected to the auditing standards 
described in the second paragraph above and on which we place no opinion. 

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards 

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our separate report dated January 
4, 2019, on our consideration of Foodbank of Santa Barbara County’s internal control over financial 
reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and 
grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of 
internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide 
an opinion on internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of 
an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering Foodbank of Santa 
Barbara County’s internal control over financial reporting and compliance. 

 

Orcutt, California 
January 4, 2019 
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FOODBANK	OF	SANTA	BARBARA	COUNTY	

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

 

The Foodbank of Santa Barbara County’s mission is to end hunger and transform the health of Santa 
Barbara County through good nutrition.  It has served as the countywide hub for food distribution 
since 1982. Annually, the Foodbank provides 10 million pounds of healthy food (half is fresh 
produce) and offers nutrition education to Santa Barbara County residents. It procures healthy 
staples and fresh produce from a network of local growers, groceries, suppliers, government entities, 
and individual donors. From two warehouses, one in Santa Maria and one in Santa Barbara, food is 
distributed through a network of 300 nonprofit agencies (Catholic Charities, Boys & Girls Clubs, the 
Santa Barbara Rescue Mission), schools, and community centers. In 2017, the Foodbank celebrated 
35 years of service to Santa Barbara County. 

 

In FY2018, the Foodbank served 173,593 unduplicated low-income (below federal poverty level) 
individuals in Santa Barbara County. Of those served, 72% or 124,986 individuals were 
Hispanic/Latino, 39% or 67,073 were children (0-17 years), 14% or 25,023 were seniors (60 years 
or older) and 55% or 96,081 were female. A total of 2,107 volunteers contributed 24,754 hours of 
their valuable time and service. South Santa Barbara County constitutes 30%, of the Foodbank’s 
service area, with 51,049 individuals served last fiscal year with a total of 967,051 pounds of produce, 
or 25% of produce distributed countywide, was given out in South Santa Barbara County. 

 

The Foodbank’s bilingual (Spanish/English) nutrition education programs operate at more than 100 
sites countywide (40 sites in South Santa Barbara County) on a daily and monthly basis. This year the 
Feed the Future Children’s Health Initiative provided healthy food and 500 hours of nutrition 
education based on seasonal fresh produce to more than 10,000 children.  Notably, all children, 
families, and seniors participate in Foodbank programs free of cost. 

 

The Foodbank is a member of Feeding America, a national organization representing 200 food banks, 
and the California Association of Food Banks. CAFB leverages its constituency to allow the Foodbank 
to purchase large quantities of healthy foods at discounted prices. Food security in times of 
emergency has taken on urgency since the Thomas Fire and Montecito Debris Flow. As the lead 
organization for Voluntary Organizations Active in Disaster-Santa Barbara County (VOAD-SBC), the 
Foodbank is fiscally and logistically responsible for coordinating response efforts when a disaster 
strikes within Santa Barbara County. The Foodbank is the sole distributor of USDA foods in Santa 
Barbara County, and as part of a nationwide and statewide network of food banks, has access to food 
resupply from organizations to the north, east, and south. 
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FOODBANK	OF	SANTA	BARBARA	COUNTY
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

JUNE 30, 2018
(With Comparative Totals as of June 30, 2017) 

Temporarily Permanently Total Total
Unrestricted Restricted Restricted 2018 2017

ASSETS

CURRENT ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents 1,861,515$      208,182$         -$                   2,069,697$      334,750$         
Accounts and other receivables, net 22,609              -                     -                     22,609              15,508              
Grants and contracts receivable 124,746            2,275                 -                     127,021            189,759            
Pledges and bequest receivable -                     153,561            -                     153,561            405,361            
Food inventory 259,385            712,816            -                     972,201            648,878            

Total Current Assets 2,268,255        1,076,834        -                     3,345,089        1,594,256        

FIXED ASSETS, NET 1,386,796        -                     -                     1,386,796        1,554,681        

OTHER ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents designated 

for operating reserve 155,375            -                     -                     155,375            153,928            
Certificate of deposit designated

for operating reserve 250,000            -                     -                     250,000            252,775            
Beneficial interest in assets 

held by others 363,764            -                     -                     363,764            363,110            
Grants and contracts receivable, 

net of current -                     -                     -                     -                     216,000            
Pledges and bequest receivable, net of current -                     407,269            -                     407,269            176,239            
Cash held in endowment -                     -                     5,379                 5,379                 5,379                 
Retirement plan assets 124,791            -                     -                     124,791            100,911            
Deposits 26,030              -                     -                     26,030              33,926              

Total Other Assets 919,960            407,269            5,379                 1,332,608        1,302,268        

TOTAL	ASSETS 4,575,011$				 1,484,103$				 5,379$													 6,064,493$				 4,451,205$				

LIABILITIES	AND	NET	ASSETS

CURRENT LIABILITIES
Accounts payable 127,677$         -$                   -$                   127,677$         78,817$            
Accrued salary and related expenses 197,915            -                     -                     197,915            189,828            
Grants payable 19,030              -                     -                     19,030              -                     
Agency funds 92,661              -                     -                     92,661              120,752            
Line of credit -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     
Current portion of long-term debt 72,000              -                     -                     72,000              75,148              

Total Current Liabilities 509,283            -                     -                     509,283            464,545            

OTHER LIABILITIES
Retirement plan liability 124,791            -                     -                     124,791            100,911            
Long-term debt 144,000            -                     -                     144,000            216,000            

Total Other Liabilities 268,791            -                     -                     268,791            316,911            

Total Liabilities 778,074            -                     -                     778,074            781,456            

NET ASSETS
Unrestricted

General operating 1,857,002        -                     -                     1,857,002        270,538            
Property and equipment, net of related loan 1,170,796        -                     -                     1,170,796        1,265,892        
Board designated reserve 769,139            -                     -                     769,139            769,813            

Total Unrestricted 3,796,937        -                     -                     3,796,937        2,306,243        
Temporarily restricted -                     1,484,103        -                     1,484,103        1,358,127        
Permanently restricted -                     -                     5,379                 5,379                 5,379                 

Total Net Assets 3,796,937        1,484,103        5,379                 5,286,419        3,669,749        

TOTAL	LIABILITIES	AND	NET	ASSETS 4,575,011$				 1,484,103$				 5,379$													 6,064,493$				 4,451,205$				

See Accompnying Notes
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FOODBANK	OF	SANTA	BARBARA	COUNTY
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018
(With Comparative Totals for Year Ended June 30, 2017) 

Temporarily Permanently Total Total
Unrestricted Restricted Restricted 2018 2017

REVENUE, GAINS, AND OTHER SUPPORT
Contributions from public 3,173,073$      155,671$         -$                   3,328,744$      2,375,832$      
Foundation grants 814,627            100,000            -                     914,627            530,758            
Government grants and contracts 72,341              404,996            -                     477,337            255,415            
In-Kind contributions of food 13,507,675      474,267            -                     13,981,942      13,502,540      
In-Kind contributions of interest and facilities 24,026              -                     -                     24,026              30,905              
Fundraising events, net of direct expenses of

$86,434 and $68,393, respectively 354,543            138,000            -                     492,543            567,123            
Agency fees 442,559            -                     -                     442,559            419,482            
Interest 15,023              -                     -                     15,023              385                    
Gain on sale of fixed assets -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     
Change in value of beneficiary interest in -                     

assets held by others 654                    -                     -                     654                    27,539              
Other revenue 5,464                 -                     -                     5,464                 5,510                 

Total Revenues, Gains and Other Support 18,409,985      1,272,934        -                     19,682,919      17,715,489      

RECLASSIFICATIONS
Net assets released from restrictions 1,146,958        (1,146,958)      -                     -                     -                     

EXPENSES
Program Expenses

Agency services 7,340,051 -                     -                     7,340,051        7,420,462        
Free produce program 4,447,896        -                     -                     4,447,896        4,353,800        
Program services 4,526,691        -                     -                     4,526,691        4,311,728        

Total Program Services 16,314,638      -                     -                     16,314,638      16,085,990      

Supporting Services
Management and general 752,644            -                     -                     752,644            691,844            
Fundraising 998,967            -                     -                     998,967            978,264            

Total Supporting Services 1,751,611        -                     -                     1,751,611        1,670,108        

Total Expenses 18,066,249      -                     -                     18,066,249      17,756,098      

CHANGE	IN	NET	ASSETS 1,490,694							 125,976										 ‐																					 1,616,670							 (40,609)											

NET ASSETS, BEGINNING OF YEAR 2,306,243        1,358,127        5,379                 3,669,749        3,710,358        

NET	ASSETS,	END	OF	YEAR 3,796,937$				 1,484,103$				 5,379$													 5,286,419$				 3,669,749$				

See Accompnying Notes
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FOODBANK	OF	SANTA	BARBARA	COUNTY
STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018
(With Comparative Totals for Year Ended June 30, 2017) 

Program & Program &
Supporting Supporting 

Services Services
General 

Agency Free Produce Other Program and Fund Total Total
Services Program Services Total Admin. Raising 2018 2017

SALARIES & RELATED EXPENSES
Salaries 511,126$         309,730$         315,217$          1,136,073$         251,142$     630,347$     2,017,562$         1,857,689$         
Payroll taxes 43,451              26,330              26,797               96,578                 21,350          53,586          171,514              158,136              
Employee benefits 82,578              50,040              50,927               183,545              62,898          101,826       348,269              412,320              

Total Salaries & Related Expenses 637,155           386,100           392,941            1,416,196           335,390       785,759       2,537,345           2,428,145           

COST OF GOODS SOLD
COGS - purchased food 166,009           100,598           102,380            368,987              -                 -                 368,987              341,987              
COGS - donated food 5,188,876        3,144,334        3,200,036         11,533,246        -                 -                 11,533,246        12,480,683        
COGS - USDA 950,861           576,199           586,406            2,113,466           -                 -                 2,113,466           1,130,437           

Total Cost of Goods Sold 6,305,746        3,821,131        3,888,822         14,015,699        -                 -                 14,015,699        13,953,107        

OTHER EXPENSES
Freight inbound 30,128              18,257              18,580               66,965                 -                 -                 66,965                 57,668                 
Professional and contract services 32,839              19,899              20,252               72,990                 79,902          24,234          177,126              158,660              
Warehouse expenses 110,438           66,923              68,108               245,469              11,505          5,376            262,350              229,871              
General office expenses 20,308              12,307              12,525               45,140                 188,970       43,335          277,445              217,582              
Utilities 42,010              25,457              25,908               93,375                 985                3,709            98,069                 84,014                 
Travel and meeting expenses 22,928              13,894              14,140               50,962                 10,757          10,991          72,710                 49,923                 
Fundraising expenses -                     -                     -                      -                        472                81,047          81,519                 98,834                 
Insurance, dues and miscellaneous 9,330                5,654                5,754                 20,738                 57,512          2,300            80,550                 79,716                 
Marketing development and materials -                     -                     -                      -                        -                 20,182          20,182                 7,362                   
Business Expenses 30,469              18,464              18,791               67,724                 62,896          17,779          148,399              149,603              
Imputed interest expense 6,813                4,129                4,202                 15,144                 -                 -                 15,144                 19,511                 

Total Other Expenses 305,263           184,984           188,260            678,507              412,999       208,953       1,300,459           1,152,744           

Depreciation Expense 91,887              55,681              56,668               204,236              4,255            4,255            212,746              222,102              

TOTAL	EXPENSES,	YEAR	ENDED	JUNE	30,	2018 7,340,051$				 4,447,896$				 4,526,691$					 16,314,638$				 752,644$			 998,967$			 18,066,249$				

TOTAL	EXPENSES,	YEAR	ENDED	JUNE	30,	2017 7,420,462$				 4,353,800$				 4,311,728$					 16,085,990$				 691,844$			 978,264$			 17,756,098$				

See Accompnying Notes

Supporting ServicesProgram

6 Page 85 of 120



FOODBANK	OF	SANTA	BARBARA	COUNTY
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018
(With Comparative Totals for Year Ended June 30, 2017) 

Total Total
2018 2017

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Change in net assets 1,616,670$      (40,609)$          
Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets

to net cash provided (used) by operating activities:
Depreciation 212,746            222,102            
In-kind loan forgiveness (72,000)            (72,789)            
Gain on sale of fixed assets -                     -                     
Unrealized loss (gain) on beneficiary interest

in assets held by others (654)                  (27,539)            
Changes in:

Value of food inventory (323,323)          84,067              
Accounts and other receivables (7,101)               3,700                 
Grants and contracts receivable 278,738            186,954            
Pledges receivable 20,770              (45,320)            
Deposits 7,896                 -                     
Accounts payable 48,860              (47,844)            
Accrued salary and related expenses 8,087                 15,399              
Grants payable 19,030              -                     
Agency funds (28,091)            69,308              

NET CASH PROVIDED FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 1,781,628        347,429            

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Distribution from beneficial interest in assets held by others -                     14,812              
Proceeds from sale of fixed assets -                     -                     
Reinvestment of interest in certificate of deposit -                     (386)                  
Acquisition of fixed assets (44,861)            (30,601)            

NET CASH USED BY INVESTING ACTIVITIES (44,861)            (16,175)            

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from line of credit -                     120,000            
Principal payments on loan (3,148)               (7,075)               
Principal payments on line of credit -                     (145,000)          
Increase in board designated operating reserve 1,328                 (54,462)            

NET CASH USED BY FINANCING ACTIVITIES (1,820)               (86,537)            

NET	INCREASE	(DECREASE)	IN	CASH 1,734,947							 244,717											

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, BEGINNING OF YEAR 334,750            90,033              

CASH	AND	CASH	EQUIVALENTS,	END	OF	YEAR 2,069,697$				 334,750$								

In-kind donation of goods and services 13,981,942$   13,502,540$   
In-kind donation of interest and facilities 24,026$            30,905$            

See Accompnying Notes

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURES OF CASH FLOW INFORMATION
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FOODBANK	OF	SANTA	BARBARA	COUNTY	
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

  

  

 

NOTE	1	 ORGANIZATION	
  

Foodbank of Santa Barbara County (the Organization) was formed as a nonprofit organization 
in 1982 and incorporated in the State of California in 1987. The Organization provides 
nourishment to those in need by acquiring and distributing safe nutritious food via local 
agencies and its own direct programs. The Foodbank is transforming the health of Santa 
Barbara County by building a long-term solution to hunger related issues through food literacy 
and self-reliance. All Foodbank uniquely designed programs include components of nutrition 
education. 

  
Direct programs include: 
 

 Mobile Food Pantry Program – Provides reliable countywide assistance to families by 
distributing perishable and nonperishable food to underserved communities. 

 Mobile Farmer’s Market Program – Rapidly distributes fresh produce to low –income 
families through a farmer’s market-like setting. 

 Kids Farmer Market Program – teaches children through food literacy with a variety of 
fresh fruit and vegetables through hands on nutrition education. 

 Brown Bag Program – Provides low-income seniors with two bags of groceries and 
fresh produce twice a month, supplementing their food costs. Volunteers deliver the 
bags to homebound seniors. 

 CalFresh Outreach – A bilingual community outreach coordinator conducts food stamp 
recruitment and assists with the application process, while offering nutrition education. 

 
The Organization is supported by federal, state and local grants, as well as support from the 
general public.  

 
NOTE	2		 SUMMARY	OF	SIGNIFICANT	ACCOUNTING	POLICIES	
 

 Basis	of	Presentation	
 

The financial statements of the Foodbank have been prepared on the accrual basis of 
accounting. The significant accounting policies are described below to enhance the usefulness 
of the financial statements to the reader. 

 
Financial	Statement	Presentation	

 
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting 
principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported 
amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of 
the financial statement and reported amounts of revenues and expenses for each year.  Net 
assets, revenues, expenses, gains and losses are classified based on the existence or absence of 
donor-imposed restrictions.  Accordingly, net assets of the Organization and changes therein 
have been classified and are reported as follows: 

 
Unrestricted	Net	Assets	
 

Unrestricted net assets are not subject to donor-imposed stipulations.  All expenses, 
revenues, gains, and losses that are not temporarily or permanently restricted by donors 
are included in this classification.  The Board of Trustees has designated $769,139 as a long-
term strategic reserve, which approximates 3 months of operating expenses.  
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FOODBANK	OF	SANTA	BARBARA	COUNTY	
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

  

  

 

Temporarily	Restricted	Net	Assets	
 

Net assets subject to donor-imposed stipulations that may or will be met either by actions 
of the Organization and/or by the passage of time. 
 
Permanently	Restricted	Net	Assets	
 

Net assets subject to donor-imposed stipulations that they be maintained in perpetuity by 
the Organization.  Generally, the donors of these assets permit the Organization to use all or 
part of the income earned on related investments for general or specific purposes. 

 
Cash	and	Cash	Equivalents	

Cash and cash equivalents include cash and highly liquid investments purchased with an 
original maturity of three months or less. 

 
Recognition	of	Donor	and	Grant	Restrictions	

All contributions are considered to be available for unrestricted use unless specifically 
restricted by the donor. 
 
All restricted support is recorded as an increase in temporarily or permanently restricted net 
assets depending on the nature of the restriction.  When a restriction expires, temporarily 
restricted net assets are reclassified to unrestricted net assets in the statement of activities 
under the heading net assets released from restriction. 

 
Donated	Materials	and	Services	

During the year ended June 30, 2018, the Organization received approximately 25,000 hours of 
volunteer service from 2,300 volunteers.  The volunteers served as Board members and/or 
helping with the Organization carry out its direct programs.  This volunteer time is critical to 
the success of the Organization. However, as this volunteer service does not meet the 
recognition requirements of generally accepted accounting principles, no amount has been 
recorded in these financial statements. 
 
Donated materials consist primarily of food. The Organization records the fair market value of 
the donated food as a contribution at the time of receipt. The fair market value of the donated 
food is based on Feeding America guidelines. During the year ended June 30, 2018 the 
Organization changed its basis for estimating donated food received from the United States 
Department of Agriculture (USDA).  Previously, the Organization used the value estimated by 
USDA.  The change in accounting estimate resulted in an increase of in-kind contributions of 
food of approximately $505,500 and increase of value of cost of goods sold of approximately 
$267,000. 

 
Investments	

Investments consist of cash held in certificates of deposit with initial maturity of greater than 
three months. 
 
Inventory	

Inventory is stated at the lower of market or cost, if purchased, or market value if donated. In 
addition, the Organization uses the first-in, first-out method. 
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Property	and	Equipment	
 

Property and equipment, with an estimated life of a year or longer, which is purchased or 
constructed is stated at cost; assets acquired by gift or bequest are stated at fair value at the 
date of acquisition.  The Organization uses the straight-line method for the computation of 
depreciation of long-lived assets according to the following schedule of useful lives: 
 

Asset Life 
Improvements 5 – 20 Years 
Structures 7 – 30 Years 
Furniture and Equipment 5 – 10 Years 
Vehicles 5 – 7 Years 

 
Contributions	Receivable	(Pledges)	 

 
Unconditional promises to give (pledges) are recorded as contribution income and as 
receivables. Long-term pledges are discounted to present value using a discount rate 
commensurate with the risk involved.  An allowance for uncollectible pledges is estimated by 
management based on such factors as prior collection history, type of contribution and the 
nature of the fund-raising activity. 
 
Conditional pledges are recognized when the conditions on which they depend are substantially 
met. 

	
Fair	Value	of	Financial	Instruments	

 
The estimated fair values of the Organization’s short-term financial instruments, including cash, 
cash equivalents, and accounts payables arising in the ordinary course of business, approximate 
their individual carrying amounts due to the relatively short period of time between their 
origination and expected realization.  The fair value of the beneficiary interest in assets held by 
others is based on the net asset value. The amount shown for the loans approximate fair value 
since the interest rate is at current market rates. The fair value of the retirement plan asset and 
related liability is based upon the underlying asset. 

 
Income	Taxes	

 
The Organization is a California nonprofit public benefit corporation, which is exempt from 
taxes on income under Internal Revenue Code section 501(c)(3) and State of California Revenue 
and Taxation Code Section 23701(d); therefore, no provisions for income taxes are reflected in 
the accompanying financial statements. The Organization qualifies for the charitable 
contribution deduction under Section 170(b)(1)(A) and has been classified as an organization 
that is not a private foundation under Section 509(a)(1). 
 
The Organization evaluates uncertain tax positions, whereby the effect of the uncertainty would 
be recorded if the outcome was considered probable and reasonably estimable. As of June 30, 
2018, the Organization had no uncertain tax positions requiring accrual. The Organization files 
tax returns in U.S. federal and California jurisdictions and is no longer subject to U.S. federal and 
state tax examinations by tax authorities for fiscal years ending before June 30, 2015 and June 
30, 2014, respectively. 

 
Use	of	Estimates	

 
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting 
principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect amounts 
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reported in the financial statements and accompanying notes.  Actual results could differ from 
those estimates. 
 
Significant estimates used in preparing these financial statements include: 
 

 Allocation of certain expenses by function 
 Value of donated rental space and food 
 Depreciable lives and estimated residual value of property and equipment 
 Allowance for uncollectible accounts, grants, contracts and pledges receivable 
 Present value of pledges and bequests receivable 
 Value of donated food received 

 
It is at least reasonably possible that the significant estimates will change within the next 
year. 

 
Functional	Allocation	of	Expenses	

 
The costs of providing the various programs and supporting services have been summarized by 
function in the Statement of Functional Expenses. Direct costs are charged directly to the 
appropriate program.  Joint costs such as insurance, rent and facility maintenance are allocated 
by using the direct costs of each program and supporting services.  The allocations are based on 
current data. 

 
Impairment	of	Long‐Lived	Assets	

 
The Organization reviews long-lived assets for impairment whenever events or changes in 
circumstances indicate that the carrying value of an asset may not be recoverable.  Impairment 
losses, if any, are recognized when estimated future cash flows (undiscounted and without 
interest charges) derived from such assets are less than their carrying values.  Management 
believes no such impairment occurred during the year ended June 30, 2018. 
 
Comparative	Totals	

 
The financial statements include certain prior-year summarized comparative information in 
total, but not by net asset class. Such information does not include sufficient detail to constitute 
a presentation in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles. Accordingly, such 
information should be read in conjunction with the Organization’s audited financial statements 
for the year ended June 30, 2017, from which the information was derived. 
 
Reclassifications	

 
Certain reclassifications have been made to the prior year financial statements to conform to 
current year presentation. 

 
NOTE	3	 	 ACCOUNTS	RECEIVABLE	

 
Accounts receivable consist of amounts owed to the Organization by local agencies that have 
purchased food for distribution. Based on historical collection trends, management has 
determined the receivables are fully collectible; therefore, no provision has been made for 
uncollectible amounts.  
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NOTE	4	 	 GRANTS	AND	CONTRACTS	RECEIVABLE	
 

Grants and contracts receivable are primarily from government sources and are considered to 
be fully collectible by management. All grant and contract receivables are anticipated to be 
collected in the fiscal year ended June 30, 2019. 
 

NOTE	5	 	 PLEDGES	AND	BEQUEST	RECEIVABLE	
	
Bequest	Receivable 
 
The Organization has been named as a 7% beneficiary of a bequest trust that is scheduled to be 
distributed over a nine-year period.  The bequest allows for an annual $3,000 distribution to the 
Organization.  In the final year of the trust the remaining balance held in the trust will be 
distributed to the named beneficiaries.  At June 30, 2018 management has estimated the 
present value of the Trust to be $150,958.  Management has used a discount rate of 2.5%. 
	
In‐Kind	Leases	

 
The Organization had a continuing long-term lease which expired in 2015 with the County of 
Santa Barbara at no cost for its Santa Barbara warehouse and office.  During the year ended 
June 30, 2015, the Organization entered into a second amendment of the lease, extending the 
term to 2020 and granting three five-year options. During the year ended June 30, 2004, the 
Organization entered into a continuing long-term non-cancelable lease which expires in 2023 
with the County of Santa Barbara at no cost for its Santa Maria warehouse and office.  The fair 
value of the leaseholds to the Organization represents an in- kind donation of rental space.  The 
present value, utilizing a discount rate of 5%, of donated space to be used in future periods is 
recorded as a pledge receivable.  As the lease arrangements are non-cancelable and there are no 
lease charges, the Organization deems the pledges to be fully collectible.  
	
Loan	Forgiveness 
 
The City of Santa Maria has pledged to forgive the first trust deed on the Santa Maria warehouse 
and office (see note 8 for discussion of note payable). The loan is being forgiven over a period of 
10 years at a rate of $72,000 per year.  As the pledge to forgive the note is unconditional 
management has reported the amount as a pledge receivable in the accompanying statement of 
financial position at the estimated present value of the pledge of $207,390.  Management 
believes the pledge to forgive the note is fully collectible. Management has used a discount rate 
of 2.5%. 
	
Other	Pledges	Receivable	
 
The Organization has recorded unconditional pledges receivable totaling $17,361 and $344,161 
at June 30, 2018 and 2017, respectively. The unconditional pledges primarily relate to the 
operation of the Foodbank programs.  The Organization considers the pledges fully collectible; 
therefore, no provision has been made for uncollectible pledges receivable.  
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Anticipated	Pledge	and	Bequest	Receivable	Collection	Schedule 

Management anticipates collecting the above noted pledges and bequest receivables as follows: 

Bequest In-Kind Loan Other 
Receivable Leases Forgiveness Pledges Total 

Within one year $      3,000 $    61,200 $    72,000 $ 17,361 $  153,561 
Within two to  
     five years 12,000 127,000 72,000 - 211,000
Thereafter    170,663       12,000       72,000 - 254,663

185,663 200,200 216,000 17,361 619,224 
Less Discount    (34,705)     (15,079)        (8,610) - (58,394)

$ 150,958 $ 185,121 $ 207,390 $ 17,361 $ 560,830 

NOTE	6		 FIXED	ASSETS	

Fixed assets at June 30, 2018 and 2017, were as follows: 

2018 2017 

Leasehold improvements $ 998,492  $ 988,719  
Structures 1,937,999 1,937,999  
Furniture and equipment 1,395,105  1,360,018  
Vehicles 594,771  594,771   

Total Property and Equipment 4,926,367  4,881,507 

Accumulated depreciation (3,539,571) (3,326,826) 

$ 1,386,796 $ 1,554,681 

Depreciation expense for the years ended June 30, 2018 and 2017, was $212,746 and $222,102, 
respectively. 

NOTE	7	 	 BENEFICIAL	INTEREST	IN	ASSETS	HELD	BY	OTHERS	

The Organization has a beneficiary interest in the Santa Barbara Foundation Endowment Fund 
(Fund) under an Agency Fund Agreement (Fund Agreement).  The Fund attempts to provide 
stable capital appreciation on a total return basis.  Assets of the Fund are fully exposed to 
market risks and may experience market volatility and principal loss.  The beneficial interest in 
the Fund is reported by the Organization at the estimated fair market value which is based on 
the reported net asset value of the fund as reported by the Santa Barbara Foundation.  At June 
30, 2018 and 2017, the estimated fair market value of the Organization’s interest in the Fund 
was $363,764 and $363,110, respectively. 

The Fund Agreement provides for the distribution of funds to be in accordance with the Santa 
Barbara Foundation’s spending policy for its endowed funds and consistent with the applicable 
provisions of the California Uniform Prudent Management of Institutional Funds Act (UPMIFA). 
 In accordance with California State law Santa Barbara Foundation (SBF) retains sole and 
absolute discretion over distributions from the Fund. However, the Fund Agreement allows SBF 
to seek the Organization’s advice concerning the timing and amounts of distributions from the 
Fund to the Organization.  The Organization also may request an extraordinary distribution 
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from the Fund.  The funding of any extraordinary distribution is at the SBF’s sole discretion. 
Currently, the Organization requests a distribution of 5% of the prior year fair market value of 
funds. 
 

NOTE	8		 	 DEBT	

The Organization has a loan secured by a first trust deed on the Santa Maria warehouse and 
office, payable to the Special Projects Division, City of Santa Maria. The loan originated in 2004; 
the Organization drew on the loan over a three-year period for a total of $720,000 for the 
construction of the Santa Maria warehouse and office. The non-interest bearing note is being 
forgiven over a period of ten years, commencing after five years of occupation of the 
constructed building, beginning in 2011. The forgiveness of the loan is contingent upon the 
Organization continuing operations related to the distribution of food to low income people. As 
the Organization expects to continue operations, the Organization recorded a grant receivable 
representing the forgiveness of the loan (See Note 5). 

 
The loan balances, and related grant receivable, as of June 30, 2018 and 2017 were $216,000 
and $288,789, respectively. The total imputed interest rate of 6% for the bargain rate loan for 
the years ended June 30, 2018 and 2017, was $15,144 and $19,511, respectively. 
 
The note is being forgiven as follows: 
 

Fiscal year ending June 30, 
  2019 $    72,000 
  2020 72,000 
  2021       72,000 
   $ 216,000 

 
NOTE	9	 	 BOARD	DESIGNATED	NET	ASSETS	

As part of the Organization’s strategic plan, the Board of Trustees has established an operating 
reserve equal to approximately three months of operating expenses, based on the amount of 
expenses incurred in the prior year. The operating reserve consists of cash, certificate of 
deposit and a beneficiary interest in assets held by others. The reserve consisted of the 
following amounts at June 30:  
 

    2018   2017 
     
Cash $                155,375   $                153,928 
Certificate of deposit 250,000   252,775 
Beneficiary interest in assets held by others 363,764   363,110 
     
Total $              769,139   $              769,813 
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NOTE	10	 	 TEMPORARILY			RESTRICTED	NET	ASSETS	

Temporarily restricted net assets consist of the following amounts at June 30: 

   2018 2017 

Government food program – USDA food inventory $        712,816 $         326,056 
Truck purchase 100,000 - 
Unrestricted pledges and bequest receivable 563,105 905,389 
Special events 108,182 126,682 

Total $     1,484,103 $     1,358,127 

NOTE	11	 	 CONTINGENT	LIABILITIES	

Government	Grants	and	Contracts	

The Organization receives a number of grants from various governmental agencies. These 
grants are subject to audit by the granting agencies as to allowable costs paid with government 
funds. The Organization would be liable for any government funds expended during year ended 
June 30, 2018, should those costs charged to the grants be disallowed. 

Solar	Panel	Agreement	

During the year ended June 30, 2017, the Organization signed a twenty-five year agreement 
with Wiser Capital for purchase of solar power. Although the monthly expense related to the 
agreement is projected to result in lower utility costs, the Organization is responsible for the 
maintenance and repair of the electrical system at the Santa Maria facility and may be liable for 
the costs to relocate the system should they cease to conduct business operations at that 
location. 

NOTE	12	 	 LEASES	

The Organization entered into a three-year lease agreement to rent office space effective April 
1, 2010. During fiscal year end June 30, 2016, the Organization extended the lease for an 
additional three years expiring March 31, 2019. The monthly rent and maintenance expense is 
$4,916. The Organization also has two in-kind leases for the Santa Barbara and Santa Maria 
warehouses (See Note 5) and two vehicle leases. Total cash rent expense for years ended June 
30, 2018 and 2017 was $118,372 and $97,671, respectively.  

Minimum annual lease commitments under the current lease agreements are as follows: 

   Year ended June 30, Cash In-kind Total 
2019 $ 44,244 $ 61,200 $ 105,444 
2020 81,375 55,000 136,375 
2021 34,128 24,000 58,128 
2022 33,600 24,000 57,600 
2023 21,000 24,000 45,000 

Thereafter 4,200 12,000 16,200 

Totals $ 218,547 $ 200,200 $ 418,747 

15 Page 94 of 120



FOODBANK	OF	SANTA	BARBARA	COUNTY	
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

NOTE	13	 	

NOTE	14	 	

NOTE	15	 	

RETIREMENT	PLANS	

Beginning June 1, 2009, the Organization initiated a new 403(b) annuity plan.  All full-time 
employees and part time employees working a minimum of 20 hours per week are eligible for 
the plan.  The Organization matches up to 3% of salary for employees who are employed at 
December 31 of each year.  At June 30, 2018 and 2017, the Organization contributed $77,668 
and $31,627, respectively.  The employer contribution amount is paid every pay period. 

Effective July 1, 2011, the Organization adopted 457(b) and 457(f) deferred compensation 
plans for the benefit of the Organization’s chief executive officer. During the year ended June 30, 
2016, the Organization restated the 457(b) plan, effective July 1, 2016, extending the yearly 
employer contributions until June 30, 2019, and increasing the yearly contribution amounts. 
The Organization restated the 457(f) plan, effective July 1, 2016. 

For the 457(b) plan, the Organization will make non-elective annual contributions to the plan 
on behalf of the chief executive officer. The plan balance will be maintained on the 
Organization’s books in a designated account and will remain the sole property of the 
Organization and be available to satisfy the claims of all general creditors of the Organization. 

For the 457(f) plan, a one-time contribution is made on the chief executive officer’s behalf 
under Code Section 457(f) during the year ended June 30, 2020, with the chief executive officer 
becoming fully vested in his 457(f) deferred compensation plan in the same year. 

As of June 30, 2018, the asset and related liability of the 457(b) plan in the amount of $124,791 
are recorded in other assets and liabilities on the statement of financial position.  

CONCENTRATIONS	OF	CREDIT	RISK	

A significant portion of the Organization’s revenues are derived from government grants and 
contracts. 

Individual donors are primarily from Santa Barbara County, as are the clients of the 
Organization. 

The Organization occasionally has more than $250,000 on deposit with financial institutions. 
The Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC) only insures the first $250,000 of funds on 
deposit with any one bank.  

ENDOWMENT	

The Organization’s endowment has been established for a variety of programs and operating 
reserves. As required by generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP), net assets associated 
with endowment funds, including funds designated by the Board of Trustees to function 
as endowments, are classified and reported based on the existence or absence of donor-
imposed restrictions.  

The Board of Trustees have interpreted the California adopted Uniform Prudent Management of 
Institutional Funds Act (UPMIFA) as requiring a long-term investment strategy designed to 
preserve the fair value of the original gift, as of the gift date. 

As a result of this interpretation, the Organization has classified with the explicit prohibition by 
the donor as permanently restricted net assets (a) the original value of gifts donated to the 
permanent endowment, (b) the original value of subsequent gifts to the permanent endowment, 
and (c) accumulations to the permanent endowment made in accordance with the direction of 
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the applicable donor gift instrument at the time the accumulation is added to the fund. The 
remaining portion of the donor-restricted endowment funds that is not classified in 
permanently restricted net assets are classified as temporarily restricted net assets until those 
amounts are appropriated for expenditure by the Organization in a manner consistent with the 
standard for prudence prescribed by UPMIFA.  

In accordance with California UPMIFA, the organization considers the following factors in 
making a determination to appropriate or invest donor-restricted endowment funds: The 
duration and preservation of the funds 

(1) The purposes of the Organization and the donor-restricted endowment funds
(2) General economic conditions
(3) The possible effect of inflation and deflation
(4) The expected total return and the appreciation of investments
(5) Other resources of the Organization
(6) The investment policies of the Organization

Return	Objectives	and	Risk	Parameters	

The Organization has adopted investment and spending policies for endowment assets that 
attempt to provide a predictable stream of funding to programs supported by its endowment 
while seeking to maintain the purchasing power of the endowment assets.  Endowment assets 
include those assets of donor-restricted funds that the organization must hold in perpetuity. 

Strategies	Employed	for	Achieving	Objectives	

To satisfy its long-term rate-of-return objectives, the Organization relies on a total return 
strategy in which investment returns are achieved through both capital appreciation (realized 
and unrealized) and current yield (interest and dividends). The Organization targets a 
diversified asset allocation that places a greater emphasis on long term certificates of 
deposit to achieve its long-term return objectives within prudent risk constraints. 

At June 30, 2018, the endowment comprised of $5,379 of permanently restricted net assets. 
There were no changes in endowment net assets for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2017 and 
2016. 

NOTE	16	 	 FAIR	VALUE	MEASUREMENT	

The Organization has adopted a framework for measuring and disclosing the fair value of assets 
and liabilities. Accounting principles define fair value as the price that would be received by the 
Organization to sell an asset or be paid by the Organization to transfer a liability (an exit price) 
in an orderly transaction between market participants on the measurement date. A fair value 
hierarchy has been established that prioritizes valuation inputs into three broad levels to 
ensure consistency and comparability. The valuation hierarchy gives the highest priority to 
quoted prices in active markets (Level 1) and the lowest priority to unobservable inputs     
(Level 3). 

The standard describes three levels of inputs that may be used to measure fair value as follows: 

Level 1: Quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities. 

Level 2: Observable inputs other than Level 1 prices, such as quoted prices for similar assets 
or liabilities; quoted prices in active markets that are not active; discounted cash flows; or other 
inputs that are observable or can be corroborated by observable market data for substantially 
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the full term of the assets or liabilities. 

Level 3: Unobservable inputs that are supported by little or no market activity and that are 
significant to the fair value of the assets or liabilities; including general partner estimates and 
recent third-party appraisals. 

Following is a description of the valuation methodologies used for instruments measured at fair 
value on a recurring basis and recognized in the accompanying Statements of Financial Position, 
as well as the general classification of such instruments pursuant to the valuation hierarchy. 

Where quoted market prices are available in an active market, securities are classified within 
Level 1 of the valuation hierarchy. If quoted market prices are not available, then Level 2 fair 
values are estimated by using pricing models, quoted prices of securities with similar 
characteristics, or discounted cash flows. 

Fair market valuation of Level 3 assets is based on other market factors to determine if the 
carrying value of these investments should be adjusted.  

The table below presents the balances of assets measured at fair value on a recurring basis at 
June 30: 

  Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 
2018 
Certificate of deposit $ - $      250,000 $ - 
Retirement plan assets - 124,791 -  
Beneficial interest in assets 
     held by others - 363,764 - 

Totals $ - $      738,555 $   - 

   Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 
2017 
Certificate of deposit $ - $      252,775 $ - 
Retirement plan assets - 100,911 -  
Beneficial interest in assets 
     held by others - 363,110 - 

Totals $ - $      716,796 $   - 

The Organization recognizes transfers between levels in the fair value hierarchy at the end of 
the reporting period. There were no transfers between Level 1, 2, and 3 of the fair value 
hierarchy for the year ended June 30, 2018.  

NOTE	18	 	 SUBSEQUENT	EVENTS	

Management has evaluated events through January 4, 2019, which is the date the financial 
statements were available to be issued.  With exception of the line of credit described below, 
there were no subsequent events requiring disclosure. 

In August 2018 the Organization entered into a $250,000 line of credit agreement with 
Montecito Bank & Trust.  The line of credit matures June 2019 and is subject to an annual 
interest rate of 4.240%. 
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Veggie Rescue Financial Summary 

 

Fiscal Year Dates: January 1 – December 31 
 
INCOME 

Possible categories:  Government grants, foundation grants, individuals, business support, events, fees for service, etc. 
 

Source Prior Fiscal Year’s 
Actual ($) 

Projected 2019 
Annual Budget 

($) 

YTD Actual ($) 
 (as of date) 

 
Donations 70,587.84 15,000.00       
Fundraising 8,106.01 8,250.00       

Grants 161,916.00 163,500.00       
Misc Income 00.68 2,000.68       
                        
                        
                        
                        
                        
                        
                        

TOTAL INCOME $240,610.53 $188,750.68  
 
List the In-Kind (non-cash) contributions: 
$5925.60 Volunteer hours (240 hours @ $24.69) 
$3,350.00 In-Kind Donations 
 
 
EXPENSES 

Possible categories: Salaries, professional fees, rent and utilities, travel, publicity/outreach, events, etc. 
Item Prior Fiscal Year’s 

Actual ($)  
Projected 2019 

Annual Budget ($) 
 

YTD Actual ($) 
   (as of date) 

      
General and Administration 16,230.73 29,100.00       
Program Expenses 74,485.93 131,200.00       
Fundraising 22,228.40 26,500.00       

                   

                   

                   

                   

                   

TOTAL EXPENSE $112,945.06 $186,800.00       

NET PROFIT OR LOSS $127,665.47 $1,950.68  

         

 

Total Capital Expenses $60,767.48             

i.e., computers, vehicles, building improvements, etc. 
Explanatory Notes: 
Capital Expense - Vehicle purchased in 2018 – Vehicle 2016 Chevy CP32003 
$60,767.48 Total Cost - Truck purchase and equipment installation including Truck Box, 
Refrigerator, Lift Gate and Wrap 

Page 99 of 120



Page 100 of 120

Linda
Attachment 4



Page 101 of 120



Page 102 of 120



Page 103 of 120



Page 104 of 120



Page 105 of 120



 

27 Six Flags Circle, Buellton, California 93427 
FEIN: 81-5467728 

 

 

March 15, 2019 

To the Buellton City Council,  

Less than three years ago, the Santa Barbara County Education Office 
announced that it would have to close Buellton's Zaca Center Preschool at 
the end of the school year. Parents, especially those whose children have 
special needs, were devastated. Zaca Center is the only preschool in the 
Santa Ynez Valley that enrolls children with special needs. Without the 
preschool, the children with special needs would have had to move to another location and would 
not have had the opportunity to interact and learn alongside their typically developing peers. The 
closure of the preschool would have also meant that there would be 60 families without 
preschool and a safe place for their child to be while they were at work, this on top of an existing 
shortage of preschool slots within the Santa Ynez Valley.  

Thanks to the effort of the school staff, parents, volunteers, and the funding community, the 
school has successfully made the transition from a county agency to a private, 501(c)(3) 
organization. The funds previously provided by the Buellton City Council have greatly helped in 
that process. To find that those who know us best have confidence in us and our mission has 
been an important morale-booster for those of us trying to save the school. 

Now, one year after becoming private, Zaca Center Preschool is operating an exemplary program 
with a balanced budget and a long waiting list. We have a full house of 60 students this year, 
more than half from Buellton. But like other nonprofit organizations, we must continue to raise 
funds from those who support our vital mission. To that end, we request an award from the 
Buellton City Council of $8,000. This will allow the Zaca Center Preschool to achieve the 
following mission goals at an enhanced level: 

Goal: Provide a high-quality preschool program for 65 children 
• Include art, science, math, language development, music, movement, dramatic play, 

neighborhood walks, conversations, nature activities, store reading, cooking, and tending 
to classroom pets in the garden. 

• Create a daily environment that is nurturing, secure, and supportive. 
• Foster lifelong feelings of competency and self-esteem.  
 
Goal: Provide a full-inclusion preschool 
• Support all children, children whose development is typical as well as those with 

disabilities, to play and learn together for their mutual benefit. 
• Develop curricula geared to the developmental needs of each individual child. 
 
Goal: Offer the Outdoor Classroom as an essential component of the program. 
• Children will spend a substantial portion of each day outdoors, exploring, experimenting, 

and investigating the outdoor environment. 
 
Goal: Serve daily nutritional snacks and meals 
• Use fresh produce and cook-from-scratch recipes. Children participate in gardening 

experiences by growing, tending, and harvesting foods from the preschool garden 
 

Thank you for your consideration of this request. 

Sincerely,  

Shelley Grand, Preschool Director 
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1 

Zaca Center Preschool Annual Budget 

Fiscal Year 2018-2019 

 

Income  

Direct Public Support  $30,500.00  

County Special Services $20,800.00  

Tuition and fees  $276,182.50  

Total Income $327,482.50  

  

Expenses  

Business Expenses $654.00  

Contract Services  $9,600.00  

Employee Benefits  $13,320.00  

Facilities and Equipment  $19,484.00  

Fees  $1,920.00  

Insurance  $11,579.00  

Operations  $10,904.50  

Payroll Taxes  $15,010.26  

Utilities  $5,808.00  

Wages  $180,740.09  

To Reserves  $58,462.65  

Total Expenses  $327,482.50  

  

Surplus/Deficit  $0    
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C.O.P.S. (CALIFORNIA ORGANIZATION FOR PUBLIC SAFETY, INC.) 
EIN#30-0222208 
606 Alamo Pintado Road Suite 3-187, Solvang, CA 93463| 805-245-1213 | 
cops.gym@gmail.com 

March 9, 2019 

Council 
Finance Director 
City of Buellton  
107 W. Highway 246, 
Buellton, CA 93427 
805-686-0086 

Dear Council: 

I am submitting this letter on behalf of COPS for consideration of Non-profit Grant Funding 
consideration for FY 2019-2020.   The California Organization for Public Safety is a 
registered California Non-profit organization per 501(C)(3) of Title 26 of the United States 
Code.  

COPS was officially founded in 2003 and was very active from 2003-2012 with both the 
City of Buellton and City of Solvang as well as Santa Barbara County in general.  In the 
past, COPS maintained a youth center for nearly 10 years.  The Center provided after- 
school programs including; mentorship, boxing, wrestling, martial arts and fitness training.  
COPS also had musical and equestrian programs as well as supported a youth leadership 
program with the local high school. COPS provided an after-school wrestling program at 
Jonata School many years ago. The other part of our mission was providing perishable 
skills training to law enforcement and public safety.  We hosted numerous training 
seminars in partnership with Allan Hancock College, The Sheriff’s Office, Chumash, 
Buellton, Solvang and, other community partners in the past.  

In 2012, our youth center closed due to lack of funding, increases in rent and difficulties 
maintaining an all non-paid volunteer staff.  We continued to host local sporting events in 
the City of Buellton, in partnership with Buellton’s recreations department.  We participated 
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in many of the Buellton BBQ Bonanza events and also partnered with the Chumash and, 
the American Powerlifting Federation on several events.  The American Powerlifting 
Federation chose us to organize and host the State Championships in Buellton in 2015, 
which was a very successful event.  Some of the Buellton events include, “The Beast Blast”, 
“Viking Challenge”, “Patriot Games” and, “APF State Championships.” 

COPS has been somewhat dormant over the past few years, however, we have re-
organized our board and, are focused on the law enforcement/public safety part of our 
mission with a new project.  Law Enforcement officers statewide receive limited training 
because of shrinking budgets and, government agencies re-allocating training funds for 
other projects.  The vast majority of public service agencies end up providing the minimum 
training to their personnel.  An example of this is the perishable skills training of arrest and 
control, which involves properly training officers to use reasonable force to effect an arrest 
to minimize injury to the suspect and the officer.  A well trained officer means fewer 
incidents of injury to the public and a reduction in law suits, worker’s compensation claims 
and a perception of unreasonableness by the public.  The result of well trained law 
enforcement officers is our citizens being better protective and a high level of confidence 
in our officers.  It increases safety for our citizens.   

 

Law enforcement agencies often re-allocate training budgets to fill other budgetary needs.  
Training of officers suffer because of this and, results in a dangerous cause and effect 
including injuries to officers, injuries to the public and a lack of public confidence and trust 
in our law enforcement.   Officers are not provided with the necessary tools to protect the 
public or themselves.  The State only requires a minimum of (4) hours of perishable skills 
training in arrest and control every two years.  Most agencies only provide the minimum 
which is not enough.  Many agencies only provide firearms training 1-4 times per year to 
their personnel and, only some of the training involves real firearms.  The most common 
use of force or technique in law enforcement to effect an arrest is hands on, physical arrest 
and control, defensive tactics.  Over 90% of all use of force cases where an arrest is made 
involves physical control, not weapons and yet our officers are trained only 4 hours every 
two years.  Officers receive 40 hours of this training initially in the academy and because 
it is a perishable skill, officers forget approximately 75% or more, of what they learned 
within 12 months of being on the job.  This results in officers using more force to effect 
an arrest, using weapons, batons, Tasers, pepper spray or other devices because they lack 
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the training and skills to use lesser force, such as de-escalation and control techniques.  It 
has become a trend for legislators to try to redefine “reasonable force” terminology, 
however the real solution is not in re-defining legal terminology, but in increasing training 
for law enforcement to provide the necessary tools, skills and confidence for officers to 
effect arrests, de-escalate incidents and resolve conflict safely with the lowest level of force 
possible.  

The Mission of COPS is as follows: 

 “We, the members of C.O.P.S. are dedicated to providing public safety training, including 
development and research.  We are committed to providing public safety support to the 
men and women on the front lines. We are committed to building character in our youth 
and adults through mentorships based upon the six core values of honor, duty, discipline, 
courage, integrity and compassion. We endorse supporting community service and 
education through partnerships with public and private entities.  Our centers are 
established to help accomplish our mission and to perpetuate true martial arts training for 
both youth and adults by establishing facilities to promote martial arts, self-defense, arrest 
and control training for law enforcement and to promote lifetime fitness.”   

Our current project involves opening a law enforcement training facility in Solvang.  The 

facility will primarily serve the local communities of the central valley by providing training 
to our Sheriff’s Deputies, Buellton Station California Highway Patrol Officers, Lompoc PD, 

Chumash Security and, other local law enforcement agencies wanting to participate an 

arrest and control/Use of Force training facility.  The facility will be staffed by volunteer 
law enforcement officers who are P.O.S.T. (CA Peace Officers Standards and Training) 

Certified arrest and control instructors.  We have six certified instructors on our board at 
this time.  We are also working with County Risk management and the Sheriff’s Training 

Bureau as partners in this project as some of the training will be endorsed by the County 
and on-duty pay for instructors will be authorized for some training.   
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We have secured a building site and will be planning on remodeling the building to have a 

designated mat room with a safety subfloor and full safety equipment for all aspects of 
training.  Members of COPS will be dong the construction on a voluntary basis and one 

officer has experience as a commercial building contractor.  Our goal is to complete this 
project by September.  COPS has not been involved in hosting events or fundraising for 

the past 4 years, however we have started to plan construction of our new facility.  Our 
initial use of funding will include construction materials, some safety equipment, 

purchasing of a supplemental insurance policy and promotional materials for training.  
None of our officers on the board receive stipends or compensation for involvement.  No 

funding is used for administrative costs, other than actual expenses such as making copies 
of instructional materials or reimbursement for expenses related to COPS activities.  

Due to no activity over the past 4 years with COPS, our financial statements are minimal.  

We have had the same account with Pacific Western Bank since 2003.  Currently there is 
$31.64 in our account.  Nothing has been collected or paid out since 2015.  COPS does 

have a successful history of being able to raise funding for activities through fundraising 
events, seminars and small grants.  Although we intend to provide this training to law 

enforcement and public safety personnel free of charge, we will have some seminars where 
we will charge a small fee for participation. Some seminars will be POST certified and these 

include a tuition we can collect from agencies outside of our local area. We will also be 

hosting fundraising events and, seeking other grants from the City of Solvang, the 
Chumash Foundation, State and Federal grants when available to maintain the facility.    

  

Attached to this letter are pictures of our previous facility and some of the training we have 

hosted in the past.  There are also pictures of our current facility project in it’s current 
unfinished state.  We will start clean-up and construction in early April, 2019.  We are 

requesting a $15,000.00 grant for seed money to begin this project.  The largest expense 
we believe will be a spring subfloor under the mats to provide safety for participants 

training.  This includes approximately a 1000 SF areas with double layered plywood, 
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specially constructed high density foam blocks and a protective boarder.  Other 

construction needed includes drywall, paint and lumber.  We plan to have a very safe and 
modern training facility fully equipped for all arrest and control, defensive tactics and de-

escalation training for public safety.  

 

Eventually we intend to expand training to include law enforcement firearms training, crisis 
response and, any requested training based upon needs assessments from our local 

community.   

 

We are very excited about this project and will be grateful with any assistance our City 
Council decides to provide.  Thank you very much for consideration of this request.  If you 

have any questions or would like any additional information, please contact me anytime. 

  

Sincerely, 

Eddie Hsueh 

President 

Page 112 of 120



New	facility	under	construction	in	Solvang	

	

Page 113 of 120



	

Page 114 of 120



	

Page 115 of 120



CITY OF BUELLTON 
City Council Agenda Staff Report 

 
City Manager Review:  MPB 

Council Agenda Item No.:         7 
 
To:    The Honorable Mayor and City Council 
 
From:    Linda Reid, H.R. Director 
 
Meeting Date: April 11, 2019 

 
Subject: Consideration of Reinstating Employer Contribution to the 457 

Deferred Compensation Plan (DCP) for Employees Hired after 
January 1, 2012 

 
 
BACKGROUND 
 

From the City’s incorporation in 1992 until January 1, 2012, the City paid 6% to each 
regular full-time employee’s Deferred Compensation Plan (DCP).  In fact, this policy was 
instituted by the Buellton Community Services District (the predecessor in interest to the 
City), whereby both the District and employee paid 6% into the DCP for a total of 12 
percent.  The Plan was established in lieu of Social Security participation and was meant 
to be mandatory so that employees would receive some contribution in retirement rather 
than Social Security.  This benefit was carried over when the City incorporated and was 
in effect until the Council approved Resolution No. 12-02 (Attachment 1) on January 26, 
2012, which took away the employer contribution of 6% but still allowed new employees 
to contribute to the Plan after one year of successful service with the City.  Staff 
presented and Council approved Resolution No. 12-02 in an effort to be fiscally prudent 
during the recession years.   

 
On January 1, 2013, the California Public Employees’ Pension Reform Act (PEPRA) 
went into effect and changed the way CalPERS retirement and health benefits are 
applied, with the greatest impact being felt by new CalPERS members.  PEPRA required 
that municipalities compel new CalPERS members to pay 6.5% of their retirement 
contribution, which will increase to 7.25% on July 1, 2019.  The City could continue to 
pay the employer portion of the CalPERS contribution but not the employee portion for 
new members. Employees hired prior to January 2013 (Classic Members) are receiving 
both the employee and employer contributions from the City.  
 
Employees hired after January 2012 had their benefit package changed significantly.  Not 
only were they not receiving the employer’s 6% contribution into DCP but they were 
now required to pay 6.5% to CalPERS.  In an employee market, staff is making every 
effort to keep benefits competitive in order to attract and retain good employees.  It is 
also very important to have equity among employees and not have some employees feel 
they are less valuable and are not able to enjoy the same benefits as other employees.   
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The City’s employee base is not expected to grow significantly in the future and 
therefore, staff is requesting that the employer’s 6% contribution into DCP be reinstated 
effective July 1, 2019 for all regular full-time employees hired after January 1, 2012.   
There would not be any retroactive pay associated with this change.  
 

FISCAL IMPACT 
 

The annual fiscal impact would be approximately $22,519 to add the employer paid 6% 
contribution into DCP for six current employees.  If approved by the Council, staff will 
include the revised contribution in the Fiscal Year 2019/20 budget.  

 
RECOMMENDATION 
 

That the City Council consider reinstating the employer paid 6% contribution into DCP 
for all regular full-time employees hired after January 1, 2012.  If there is Council 
consensus to reinstate the employer paid DCP contribution, staff will bring back the 
appropriate resolution for Council approval. 

 
ATTACHMENTS 
 

Attachment 1 – Resolution No. 12-02 
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